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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.
LOOP MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,     September 30, 
2024 2023

ASSETS (UNAUDITED)    
Current assets      
Cash $ 2,197,359 $ 3,068,696
Accounts receivable, net  3,572,222  6,211,815
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  667,124  987,605
Content assets, current 1,749,683 2,218,894
Total current assets  8,186,388  12,487,010
Non-current assets       
Deposits  9,968  12,054
Content assets, non-current 257,921 448,726
Deferred costs, non-current 698,570 744,408
Property and equipment, net  2,290,284  2,711,558
Operating lease right-of-use assets  205,545  —
Intangible assets, net  421,667  477,889
Total non-current assets  3,883,955  4,394,635
Total assets $ 12,070,343 $ 16,881,645

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)     
Current liabilities       
Accounts payable $ 7,942,137 $ 4,978,920
Accrued liabilities 1,494,278 3,546,338
Accrued royalties and revenue share 5,256,608 4,930,329
License content liabilities, current 865,572 489,157
Equipment financing liability, current 32,998 —
Deferred Income  52,983  —
Lease liability, current 66,024 —
Revolving line of credit, current 1,824,560 2,985,298
Non-revolving line of credit, current 994,033 2,124,720
Non-revolving line of credit - related party, current  1,000,000  —
Total current liabilities  19,529,193  19,054,762
Non-current liabilities       
License content liabilities, non-current 153,000 208,000
Equipment financing liability, non-current 79,381 —
Lease liability, non-current 139,521 —
Revolving line of credit - related party, non-current 1,595,620 —
Non-revolving line of credit, non-current  537,831  475,523
Non-revolving line of credit - related party, non-current — 1,959,693
Total non-current liabilities  2,505,353  2,643,216
Total liabilities  22,034,546  21,697,978

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9) — —

Stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Common Stock, $0.0001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 71,173,736 and 65,620,151  shares issued and
outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and September 30, 2023, respectively  7,117 6,562
Additional paid in capital  131,170,258 123,462,648
Accumulated deficit  (141,141,578) (128,285,543)
Total stockholders' equity (deficit)  (9,964,203)  (4,816,333)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 12,070,343 $ 16,881,645

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LOOP MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

Three months ended March 31, Six months ended March 31,
    2024 2023     2024 2023

Revenue $ 4,002,463 $ 5,393,231 $ 14,173,719 $ 20,219,062
Cost of revenue   

Cost of revenue - Advertising and Legacy and other revenue 2,833,024 3,177,607 8,572,733 11,635,240
Cost of revenue - depreciation and amortization 751,276 630,543 1,558,284 1,312,710
Total cost of revenue 3,584,300 3,808,150 10,131,017 12,947,950

Gross profit 418,163  1,585,081 4,042,702  7,271,112

Operating expenses           
Sales, general and administrative 5,735,694  7,769,314 11,906,671  15,727,448
Stock-based compensation 1,112,137 2,475,807 2,440,362 4,266,614
Depreciation and amortization 413,197 235,009 795,072 422,725
Restructuring costs — — — —
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets — — — —
Total operating expenses 7,261,028  10,480,130 15,142,105  20,416,787

Loss from operations (6,842,865)  (8,895,049) (11,099,403)  (13,145,675)

Other income (expense)           
Interest income —  —  —
Interest expense (729,274)  (919,444) (1,731,464)  (1,927,027)
Loss on extinguishment of debt —  —  —
Gain on extinguishment of debt — — —
Change in fair value of derivatives —  —  —
Employee retention credits — — —
Other expense 1,506 (2,624) (25,168) (2,624)
Total other income (expense) (727,768)  (922,068) (1,756,632)  (1,929,651)
Loss before income taxes (7,570,633) (9,817,117) (12,856,035) (15,075,326)
Income tax (expense)/benefit —  — —  (1,230)
Net loss $ (7,570,633) $ (9,817,117) $ (12,856,035) $ (15,076,556)

Basic and diluted net loss per common share (Note 2) $ (0.11) $ (0.17) $ (0.19) $ (0.27)

Weighted average number of basic and diluted common shares
outstanding 71,010,998  56,381,209 68,887,644  56,381,209

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LOOP MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2024, and 2023
(UNAUDITED)

Common Stock Additional Paid Accumulated
Shares Amount in Capital Deficit Total

Balances, September 30, 2023     65,620,151     $ 6,562     $ 123,462,648     $ (128,285,543)     $ (4,816,333)
Stock-based compensation — — 1,287,390 — 1,287,390
Warrants issued for debt — — 1,003,269 — 1,003,269
Warrants issued for consulting fees — — 40,835 — 40,835
Shares issued for consulting fees 311,889 31 124,101 — 124,132
Shares issued for debt conversion 3,037,895 304 2,455,437 — 2,455,741
Shares issued for capital raise costs 30,405 3 22,497 — 22,500
Shares issued upon warrant exercises 1,850,874 185 1,480,514 — 1,480,699
Net loss  —  —  —  (5,285,402)  (5,285,402)
Balances, December 31, 2023  70,851,214 $ 7,085 $ 129,876,691 $ (133,570,945) $ (3,687,169)
Stock-based compensation — — 1,271,070 — 1,271,070
Shares issued for vested RSUs 292,117 29 (29) — —
Shares issued for capital raise costs 30,405 3 22,526 — 22,529
Net loss — — — (7,570,633) (7,570,633)
Balances, March 31, 2024  71,173,736 $ 7,117 $ 131,170,258 $ (141,141,578) $ (9,964,203)

Common Stock Additional Paid Accumulated
Shares Amount in Capital Deficit Total

Balances, September 30, 2022     56,381,209     $ 5,638     $ 101,970,318     $ (96,321,864)     $ 5,654,092
Stock-based compensation — — 1,790,807 — 1,790,807
Net loss  —  —  —  (5,259,439)  (5,259,439)
Balances, December 31, 2022 56,381,209 $ 5,638 $ 103,761,125 $ (101,581,303) $ 2,185,460
Stock-based compensation — — 2,475,807 — 2,475,807
Short swing profit recovery — — 1,201 — 1,201
Issuance costs from uplist of stock — — (86,330) — (86,330)
Net loss — — — (9,817,117) (9,817,117)
Balances, March 31, 2023  56,381,209 $ 5,638 $ 106,151,803 $ (111,398,420) $ (5,240,979)

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LOOP MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

Six months ended March 31, 
2024     2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
Net loss $ (12,856,035) $ (15,076,556)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:     
Amortization of debt discount  924,766 1,244,329
Depreciation and amortization expense  795,072 422,725
Amortization of content assets 1,558,283 1,312,710
Amortization of right-of-use assets  (205,545) 59,511
Bad debt expense 677,882 —
Extinguishment of debt converted to equity 338,858 —
Loss on extinguishment of debt converted to equity 25,424 —
Stock-based compensation  2,599,295 4,266,614
Shares issued for capital raise costs 44,997 —
Shares issued for consulting fees 124,135 —
Shares issued for vested RSUs 29 —
Change in operating assets and liabilities:   
    Accounts receivable  1,961,711 6,896,649
    Inventory  7,604 10,252
    Prepaid expenses  312,880 568,138
    Deposit  2,086 (201)
    Accounts payable  3,509,252 (1,181,952)
    Accrued liabilities (2,054,235) (2,207,835)
    Accrued royalties and revenue share 326,279 (1,374,484)
    License content liability  (751,100) (3,457,477)
    Operating lease liabilities  205,545 (57,046)

Equipment financing liability 112,379 —
    Deferred income  52,983 (140,764)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (2,287,455)  (8,715,387)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       
Purchase of property and equipment  (473,562) (1,046,876)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (473,562)  (1,046,876)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       
Proceeds from lines of credit 19,793,104 28,087,249
Repayments on lines of credit (19,001,212) (27,326,600)
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 1,480,699 —
Issuance costs for stock uplist — (86,330)
Deferred costs (167,789) (61,983)
Payment of acquisition related consideration — (250,125)
Debt issuance costs (215,122) (22,300)
Short swing profit recovery — 1,201
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES  1,889,680  341,112

Change in cash and cash equivalents  (871,337)  (9,421,151)
Cash, beginning of period  3,068,696  14,071,914
Cash, end of period $ 2,197,359 $ 4,650,763

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW STATEMENTS       
Cash paid for interest $ 511,738 $ 665,309
Cash paid for income taxes $ — $ 1,230
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES       
Shares issued for debt conversion $ 2,455,741 $ —
Deferred costs for warrants issued for debt $ — $ —
Unpaid additions to licensed content and internally developed content $ 200,167 $ 52,916
Unpaid deferred costs $ 36,625 $ 170,862
Unpaid additions to property and equipment $ 30,820 $ 387,588

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LOOP MEDIA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2024
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 – BUSINESS

Loop Media, Inc., a Nevada corporation, (collectively, “Loop Media,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) is a multichannel
digital video platform media company that uses marketing technology, or “MarTech,” to generate our revenue and offer our services. Our
technology and vast library of videos and licensed content enable us to curate and distribute short-form videos to connected televisions
(“CTV”) in out-of-home (“OOH”) dining, hospitality and retail establishments, convenience stores and other locations and venues to enable
them to inform, entertain and engage their customers. Our technology also provides businesses the ability to promote and advertise their
products via digital signage and provides third-party advertisers with a targeted marketing and promotional tool for their products and
services. We also allow our business clients to access our service without advertisements by paying a monthly subscription fee.

We offer hand-curated music video content licensed from major and independent record labels, including Universal Music Group
(“Universal”), Sony Music Entertainment (“Sony”), and Warner Music Group (“Warner” and collectively with Universal and Sony, the
“Music Labels”), as well as non-music video content. Our non-music video content is predominantly licensed or acquired from third
parties, including action sports clips, drone and nature footage, trivia, news headlines, lifestyle channels and kid-friendly videos, as well as
movie, television and video game trailers, amongst other content. We distribute our content and advertising inventory to digital screens
located in OOH locations primarily through (i) our owned and operated platform (the “O&O Platform”) of Loop Media-designed “small-
box” streaming Android media players (“Loop Players”) and legacy ScreenPlay (as defined below) computers and (ii) through screens
(“Partner Screens”) on digital platforms owned and operated by third parties (each a “Partner Platform” and collectively, the “Partner
Platforms,” and together with the O&O Platform, the “Loop Platform”).

As of March 31, 2024, we had approximately 83,000 active Loop Players and Partner Screens across the Loop Platform, which
include 32,658 quarterly active Loop Players, or QAUs (as defined below) across our O&O Platform, a decrease of 1,125 over the quarter
ended December 31, 2023, and approximately 50,000 Partner Screens across our Partner Platforms, an increase of approximately 7,000
Partner Screens over the quarter ended December 31, 2023.

We define an “active unit” as (i) an ad-supported Loop Player or digital out-of-home (“DOOH”) location using our ad- supported
service through our “Loop for Business” application or using a DOOH venue-owned computer screening our content, that is online, used on
our O&O Platform, playing content and has checked into the Loop Media analytics system at least once in the 90-day period ending on the
date of measurement, or (ii) a DOOH location customer using our subscription service on our O&O Platform at any time during the 90-day
period. We use “QAU” to refer to the number of such active units during such period. We do not count towards our QAUs any Loop Players
or screens used on our Partner Platform.

Liquidity and management’s plan

As shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, we have incurred recurring losses resulting in an accumulated
deficit. We anticipate further losses in the foreseeable future. We also had negative cash flows used in operations. These factors raise
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our primary source of operating funds since inception has been cash
proceeds from the sale of our Common Stock and debt and equity financing transactions. Our ability to continue as a going concern is
dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient revenue and our ability to raise additional funds by way of our debt and equity financing
efforts.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. These unaudited
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consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts
or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary if we are unable to continue as a going concern. Our ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent on our ability to supplement our cash from revenues with additional cash raised from equity
investment or debt transactions while maintaining reduced spending levels.  

On December 22, 2022, we filed a Shelf Registration Statement on Form S-3 that has been declared effective by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  On May 12, 2023, we entered into an At Market Issuance Sales Agreement (the “ATM Sales
Agreement”) with B. Riley Securities, Inc. (the “Agent”) pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time through the Agent,
shares of our common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”), for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $50,000,000. As of the
date of this Report, however, we are now subject to the limitations of General Instruction I.B.6. of Form S-3, and in accordance with the
terms of the ATM Sales Agreement, the number of shares of our Common Stock available for sale thereunder is now limited to one-third of
the aggregate market value of our Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Company, as calculated pursuant to General
Instruction I.B.6. of Form S-3. On January 8, 2024, we filed a Prospectus Supplement to the Prospectus filed on January 11, 2023, to
decrease the amount of our Common Stock that is available to be sold under the ATM Sales Agreement, such that we registered the offer
and sale of our Common Stock having an aggregate sales price of up to $18,200,000, from time to time. During the six months ended
March 31, 2024, and from April 1, 2024, through the date of this Report, we have not raised any funds through sales under our ATM Sales
Agreement.

Effective as of July 29, 2022, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Industrial Funding Group, Inc. (the “Initial
Lender”), which was subsequently assigned to GemCap Solutions, LLC (“GemCap”) for a revolving loan credit facility for the initial
principal sum of up to $4,000,000, which was subsequently increased to $6,000,000, and through the exercise of an accordion feature, a
total sum of up to $10,000,000 (the “GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”).  As of March 31, 2024, the GemCap Revolving Line
of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $2,147,821.  See “Note 8 – Debt.”

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interim Financial Statements

The following (a) condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2023, which has been derived from our audited
financial statements, and (b) our unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements for the six months ended March 31, 2024,
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("US GAAP") for interim financial
information and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 8-03 of Regulation S-X of the Securities Act of 1933. Accordingly, they do not
include all of the information and footnotes required by US GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for
the six months ended March 31, 2024, are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the year ending September 30,
2024.

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended September 30, 2023, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the
SEC on December 19, 2023.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and our wholly-owned subsidiaries, EON Media Group Pte. Ltd. and
Retail Media TV, Inc. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with US GAAP. All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include assumptions used in the revenue recognition of performance
obligations, allowance for doubtful accounts, fair value of stock-based compensation awards, income taxes and going concern.  

Segment reporting

We report as one reportable segment. Our business activities, revenues and expenses are evaluated by management as one
reportable segment.

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-07,
Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, that would enhance disclosures for significant segment
expenses for all public entities required to report segment information in accordance with ASC 280. ASC 280 requires a public entity to
report for each reportable segment a measure of segment profit or loss that its chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) uses to assess
segment performance and to make decisions about resource allocations. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 improve financial reporting by
requiring disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis for all public entities to enable investors to develop
more useful financial analyses. Currently, Topic 280 requires that a public entity disclose certain information about its reportable segments.
For example, a public entity is required to report a measure of segment profit or loss that the CODM uses to assess segment performance
and make decisions about allocating resources. ASC 280 also requires other specified segment items and amounts such as depreciation,
amortization and depletion expense to be disclosed under certain circumstances. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 do not change or
remove those disclosure requirements. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 also do not change how a public entity identifies its operating
segments, aggregates those operating segments, or applies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The
amendments in ASU 2023-07 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. A public entity should apply the amendments in ASU 2023-07
retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on
our condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid monetary instruments with original maturities of three months or less when
purchased. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Financial instruments that potentially subject us to
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash deposits. We maintain our cash in institutions insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). At times, our cash and cash equivalent balances may be uninsured or in amounts that exceed the FDIC
insurance limits. We have not experienced any losses on such accounts. On March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, we had no cash
equivalents.

As of March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, approximately $1,947,359 and $2,818,696 of cash exceeded the FDIC insurance
limits, respectively.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from customers. We assess the collectability of receivables on an ongoing basis. A
provision for the impairment of receivables involves significant management judgment and includes the review of individual receivables
based on individual customers, current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts. As of March 31, 2024, and September 30,
2023, we had recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts of $677,882 and $630,629, respectively.
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Concentration of credit risk

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we had two customers which each individually comprised greater than 10% of net
revenue. These customers represented 24% and 16% respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of net revenue during
the periods presented.

During the six months ended March 31, 2023, we had two customers which each individually comprised greater than 10% of net
revenue. These customers represented 17% and 15% respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of net revenue during
the periods presented.

As of March 31, 2024, two customers accounted for a total of 22% of our accounts receivable balance or 12% and 10%,
respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of total accounts receivable.

As of March 31, 2023, three customers accounted for a total of 45% of our accounts receivable balance or 20%, 15% and 10%,
respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of total accounts receivable.

We grant credit in the normal course of business to our customers. Periodically, we review past due accounts and make decisions
about future credit on a customer-by-customer basis. Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Prepaid expenses

Expenditures paid in one accounting period which will not be consumed until a future period such as insurance premiums and
annual subscription fees are accounted for on the balance sheet as a prepaid expense. When the asset is eventually consumed, it is charged to
expense.

Content Assets

We capitalize the fixed content fees and corresponding liability when the license period begins, the cost of the content is known,
and the content is accepted and available for streaming. If the licensing fee is not determinable or reasonably estimable, no asset or liability
is recorded, and licensing costs are expensed as incurred. We amortize licensed content assets into cost of revenue, using the straight-line
method over the contractual period of availability. The liability is paid in accordance with the contractual terms of the arrangement.
Internally-developed content costs are capitalized in the same manner as licensed content costs, when the cost of the content is known and
the content is ready and available for streaming. We amortize internally-developed content assets into cost of revenue, using the straight-
line method over the estimated period of streaming.

Long-lived assets

We evaluate the recoverability of long-lived assets, including intangible assets, for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Conditions that would necessitate an impairment
assessment include a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset, a significant change in the extent or manner that an asset
is used, or a significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or group of assets is not recoverable. For
long-lived assets to be held and used, we recognize an impairment loss only if their carrying amount is not recoverable through the
undiscounted cash flows. The impairment loss is based on the difference between the carrying amount and estimated fair value as
determined by discounted future cash flows. Our finite long-lived intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, which range from two to nine years.

Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the asset’s estimated useful life. Our capitalization policy is to capitalize property and equipment purchases greater than $3,000, as
well as internally-developed software enhancements. Expenditures for maintenance and
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repairs are expensed as incurred. When retired or otherwise disposed, the related carrying value and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts and the net difference less any amount realized from disposition is reflected in earnings.

Loop Players are capitalized as fixed assets and depreciated over the estimated period of use.

See below for estimated useful lives:

Loop Players 3 years
Equipment         3-5 years
Software 3 years

Operating leases

We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating lease right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”) and short-term and
long-term lease liabilities are included on the face of the consolidated balance sheet.

ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to make
lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the
present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use an incremental borrowing
rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. Our lease terms may
include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. We have lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which
are accounted for as a single lease component. For lease agreements with terms less than twelve months, we have elected the short-term
lease measurement and recognition exemption, and we recognize such lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fair value measurement

We determine the fair value of our assets and liabilities using a hierarchy established by the accounting guidance that prioritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to valuations based upon
unobservable inputs that are significant to the valuation (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of valuation hierarchy are defined as
follows:

● Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

● Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology included quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

● Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology is one or more unobservable inputs which are significant to the fair value
measurement.

The carrying amount of our financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, deposits, short-term portion of notes
receivable and notes payable, and current liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. We do not have financial assets or
liabilities that are required under US GAAP to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. We have not elected to use fair value
measurement option for any assets or liabilities for which fair value measurement is not presently required.

 
We record assets and liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as required by US GAAP. Assets recognized or disclosed at

fair value in the condensed consolidated financial statements on a nonrecurring basis include items such as
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property and equipment, operating lease assets, goodwill, and other intangible assets, which are measured at fair value if determined to be
impaired.

On September 26, 2022, our convertible debentures converted to Common Stock as part of our public offering and uplist to The
NYSE American, LLC, in accordance with the terms of the original debt agreements. As of September 30, 2022, the remaining balance of
the Derivative Liability was written off as part of the conversion to equity.  Thus, there is no fair value measurement of the Derivative
Liability balance as of March 31, 2024.

Advertising costs

We expense all advertising costs as incurred.

Advertising and marketing costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, were $1,747,971 and $2,779,517,
respectively.

Advertising and marketing costs for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, were $3,926,219 and $5,904,544,
respectively.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product to a customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration we expect to receive in
exchange for those products. In instances where final acceptance of the product is specified by the client, revenue is deferred until all
acceptance criteria have been met. For example, we bill subscription services in advance of when the service is performed and revenue is
treated as deferred revenue until the service is performed and/or the performance obligation is satisfied. Revenues are recognized under
Topic 606 in a manner that reasonably reflects the delivery of our products and services to clients in return for expected consideration and
includes the following elements:

● executed contracts with our customers that we believe are legally enforceable;

● identification of performance obligations in the respective contract;

● determination of the transaction price for each performance obligation in the respective contract;

● allocation of the transaction price to each performance obligation; and

● recognition of revenue only when we satisfy each performance obligation.

Our revenue can be categorized into two revenue streams: Advertising revenue and Legacy and other revenue.

The following table disaggregates our revenue by major type for each of the periods indicated:  

Three months ended March 31, Six months ended March 31, 
2024 2023 2024 2023

Advertising revenue $ 3,544,992 $ 4,648,390 $ 12,939,756 $ 18,607,895
Legacy and other revenue 457,471 744,841 1,233,963 1,611,167
Total $ 4,002,463 $ 5,393,231 $ 14,173,719 $ 20,219,062
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Performance obligations and significant judgments

Our performance obligations and recognition patterns for each revenue stream are as follows:  

Advertising revenue

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, advertising revenue accounts for 89% and 86%, respectively, of our
revenue and includes revenue from direct programmatic and local advertising as well as sponsorships.

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, advertising revenue accounts for 91% and 92%, respectively, of our revenue
and includes revenue from direct programmatic and local advertising as well as sponsorships.

For all advertising revenue sources, we evaluate whether we should be considered the principal (i.e., report revenues on a gross
basis) or an agent (i.e., report revenues on a net basis). Our role as principal or agent differs based on our performance obligation for each
revenue share arrangement.

For both the O&O and Partner Platforms businesses, advertising inventory provided to advertisers through the use of an
advertising demand partner or agency, with whose fees or commission is calculated based on a stated percentage of gross advertising
spending, we are considered the agent and our revenues are reported net of agency fees and commissions. We are considered the agent
because the demand partner or agency controls all aspects of the transaction (pricing risk, inventory risk, obligation for fulfillment) except
for the devices used to show the advertisements, therefore we report this advertising revenue net of agency fees and commissions.

We are considered the principal in our arrangements with content providers in our O&O Platform business and with our
arrangements with our third-party partners in our Partner Platforms business and thus report revenues on a gross basis (net of agency fees
and commissions), wherein the amounts billed to our advertising demand partners, advertising agencies, and direct advertisers and sponsors
are recorded as revenues, and amounts paid to content providers and third-party partners are recorded as expenses. We are considered the
principal because we control the advertising space, are primarily responsible to our advertising demand partners and other parties filling our
advertising inventory, have discretion in pricing and advertising fill rates and typically have an inventory risk.

For advertising revenue, we recognize revenue at the time the digital advertising impressions are filled and the advertisements are
played and, for sponsorship revenue, we generally recognize revenue ratably over the term of the sponsorship arrangement as the sponsored
advertisements are played.

Legacy and other business revenue

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, legacy and other business revenue accounts for the remaining 11% and
14%, respectively, of total revenue and includes streaming services, subscription content services, and hardware delivery, as described
below.

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, legacy and other business revenue accounts for the remaining 9% and 8%,
respectively, of total revenue and includes streaming services, subscription content services, and hardware delivery, as described below:

● Delivery of streaming services including content encoding and hosting. We recognize revenue over the term of the service
based on bandwidth usage. Revenue from streaming services is insignificant.

● Delivery of subscription content services in customized formats. We recognize revenue straight-line over the term of the
service.

● Delivery of hardware for ongoing subscription content delivery through software. We recognize revenue at the point of
hardware delivery. Revenue from hardware sales is insignificant.
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Transaction prices for performance obligations are explicitly outlined in relevant agreements; therefore, we do not believe that
significant judgments are required with respect to the determination of the transaction price, including any variable consideration identified.

Customer acquisition costs

Customer acquisition costs consist of marketing costs and affiliate fees associated with the O&O Platform business.  They are
included in operating expenses and expensed as incurred.

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue for the O&O Platform and legacy businesses represents the amortized cost of ongoing licensing and hosting fees,
which is recognized over time based on usage patterns. The depreciation expense associated with the Loop Players is not included in cost of
sales.

Cost of revenue for the Partner Platform business represents hosting fees, amortized costs of internally-developed content, and the
revenue share with third party partners (after deduction of allocated infrastructure costs). The cost of revenue is higher with partners within
the Partner Platform versus those within the O&O Platform because we leverage our Partner Platform partners’ network of customers and
their screens to deliver content and advertising inventory, rather than using our own Loop Players.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents our accounting for the timing difference between when fees are received and when the performance
obligation is satisfied.  

Net loss per share

We account for net loss per share in accordance with ASC subtopic 260-10, Earnings Per Share (“ASC 260-10”), which requires
presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) on the face of the statement of operations for all entities with complex capital
structures and requires a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic EPS computation to the numerator and denominator
of the diluted EPS.

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding during each period. It excludes the dilutive effects of any potentially issuable common shares.

Diluted net loss per share is calculated by including any potentially dilutive share issuances in the denominator.

The following securities are excluded from the calculation of weighted average diluted shares at March 31, 2024, and September
30, 2023, respectively, because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

    March 31, September 30, 
2024 2023

Options to purchase common stock  8,213,763  8,849,305
Warrants to purchase common stock  6,866,699  5,592,573
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) 4,443,473 1,156,397
Series A preferred stock  —  —
Series B preferred stock  —  —
Convertible debentures  —  —
Total common stock equivalents  19,523,935  15,598,275
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On December 14, 2023, we entered into Warrant Reprice Letter Agreements with certain holders to amend the exercise price of
existing exercisable warrants to $0.80 per share and to exercise an aggregate of 1,850,874 shares of our Common Stock for an aggregate
exercise price of $1,480,699. The impact of the amendment resulted in a deemed dividend in the amount of $419,939, which was calculated
based on the change in fair value.

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of basic and
diluted net loss per share of our Common Stock is as follows:

Six months ended March 31,

2024 2023
Numerator:

Net loss $ (12,856,035) $ (15,076,556)
Plus: Deemed dividend on warrants (419,939) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (13,275,974) $ (15,076,556)

Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 68,887,644  56,381,209

 
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ (0.19) $ (0.27)

Shipping and handling costs

Loop Players are provided free to our customers. Loop Media absorbs any associated costs of shipping and handling and records as
an operational expense at the time of service.

Income taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”).  ASC 740 requires a company to
use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences, and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the
opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion, or all of, the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effect of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Under ASC 740, a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit
is recorded. We have no material uncertain tax positions for any of the reporting periods presented.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. We have also made
a policy election to treat the income tax with respect to global intangible low-tax income as a period expense when incurred.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, as part of its initiative to
reduce complexity in accounting standards. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020,
including interim periods therein. The adoption of this standard in the first quarter of 2022 had no impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU
2023-09”).  ASU 2023-09 is intended to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in
ASU 2023-09 address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily
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through changes to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for us in the annual
period beginning October 1, 2025, though early adoption is permitted. We are still evaluating the presentational effect that ASU 2023-09
will have on our consolidated financial statements, but we expect considerable changes to our income tax footnote.

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation issued to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the requisite service period. We measure the fair value of the stock-based compensation issued to non-
employees using the stock price observed in the trading market (for stock transactions) or the fair value of the award (for non-stock
transactions), which were more reliably determinable measures of fair value than the value of the services being rendered.

Deferred financing costs

Deferred financing costs represent legal, accounting and other direct costs related to our efforts to raise capital through a public or
private sale of our Common Stock. Costs related to the public sale of our Common Stock are deferred until the completion of the applicable
offering, at which time such costs are reclassified to additional paid-in-capital as a reduction of the proceeds. Costs related to the private sale
of our Common Stock are deferred until the completion of the applicable offering, at which time such costs are amortized over the term of
the applicable purchase agreement.

Employee retention credits

In March 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act was signed into law, providing numerous tax provisions
and other stimulus measures, including the Employee Retention Credit (“ERC”): a refundable tax credit against certain employment taxes.
The Taxpayer Certainty and Disaster Tax Relief Act of 2020 and the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 extended and expanded the
availability of the ERC. We qualified for the ERC in the third and fourth quarters of 2020 and the first, second and third quarters of 2021.
During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we recorded no aggregate benefit in our condensed combined income statement to reflect the
ERC.

Restructuring costs

We undertook initiatives in fiscal year 2023 to increase efficiency and cut costs, while still maintaining our focus on, and
dedication to, the continued growth of our business. During fiscal year 2023, we made cuts and adjustments across several aspects of our
business. We completed a plan to reduce our overall SG&A costs including labor and various other operating costs. Part of this reduction
included eliminating some non-revenue generating headcount, while continuing to invest in expansion of our revenue and ad sales team.

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

In September 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This guidance requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the
reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This guidance also requires
enhanced disclosures regarding significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses. The new guidance is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2022. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our condensed consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. We adopted this ASU as of October 1, 2023, and there is no material impact to our financial statements
as of March 31, 2024.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment
Disclosures, that would enhance disclosures for significant segment expenses for all public entities required to report segment information
in accordance with ASC 280. ASC 280 requires a public entity to report for each
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reportable segment a measure of segment profit or loss that its chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) uses to assess segment
performance and to make decisions about resource allocations. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 improve financial reporting by requiring
disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis for all public entities to enable investors to develop more
useful financial analyses. Currently, Topic 280 requires that a public entity disclose certain information about its reportable segments. For
example, a public entity is required to report a measure of segment profit or loss that the CODM uses to assess segment performance and
make decisions about allocating resources. ASC 280 also requires other specified segment items and amounts such as depreciation,
amortization and depletion expense to be disclosed under certain circumstances. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 do not change or
remove those disclosure requirements. The amendments in ASU 2023-07 also do not change how a public entity identifies its operating
segments, aggregates those operating segments, or applies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The
amendments in ASU 2023-07 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. A public entity should apply the amendments in ASU 2023-07
retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on
our condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU
2023-09”).  ASU 2023-09 is intended to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in
ASU 2023-09 address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily through changes to the rate reconciliation and
income taxes paid information. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for us in the annual period beginning October 1, 2025, though early adoption
is permitted. We are still evaluating the presentational effect that ASU 2023-09 will have on our consolidated financial statements, but we
expect considerable changes to our income tax footnote.

NOTE 3 – CONTENT ASSETS

Content Assets

The content we stream to our users is generally acquired by securing the intellectual property rights to the content through licenses
from, and paying royalties or other consideration to, rights holders or their agents. The licensing can be for a fixed fee or can be a revenue
sharing arrangement. The licensing arrangements specify the period when the content is available for streaming, the territories, the
platforms, the fee structure and other standard content licensing terms defining the rights and/or restrictions for how the licensed content
can be used by Loop Media.  We also develop original content internally, which is capitalized when the content is ready and available for
streaming, and generally amortized over a period of two to three years. 

As of March 31, 2024, content assets were $1,749,683 recorded as Content asset, net – current and $257,921 recorded as Content
asset, net – noncurrent, of which $104,432 was internally-developed content asset, net.  

We recorded amortization expense in cost of revenue, in the consolidated statements of operations, related to capitalized content
assets:

Three months ended March 31,     Six months ended March 31, 
2024 2023 2024 2023

Licensed Content Assets $ 733,061 $ 615,165 $ 1,521,853 $ 1,284,843
Internally-Developed Assets 18,215 15,378 36,430 27,867
Total $ 751,276 $ 630,543 $ 1,558,283 $ 1,312,710
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Our content license contracts are typically two to three years. The amortization expense for the next three years for capitalized
content assets as of March 31, 2024:

Remaining in Fiscal
Year 2024 Fiscal Year 2025 Fiscal Year 2026

Licensed Content Assets $ 1,335,308 $ 470,463 $ 97,401
Internally-Developed Assets  36,430  59,440  8,562
Total $ 1,371,738 $ 529,903 $ 105,963

License Content Liabilities

As of March 31, 2024, we had $1,218,738 of obligations comprised of $865,572 in License content liability – current, $153,000 in
License content liability - noncurrent and $200,167 in accounts payable on our consolidated balance sheets. Payments for content liabilities
for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $468,307. The expected timing of payments for these content obligations is $550,071
payable in fiscal year 2024, $365,500 payable in fiscal year 2025 and $110,000 payable in fiscal year 2026.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Our property and equipment, net consisted of the following as of March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023:

    March 31, September 30, 
2024 2023

Loop Players $ 3,050,604 $ 2,536,937
Equipment 466,156 801,301
Software  874,966  854,966

 4,391,726  4,193,204
Less: accumulated depreciation  (2,101,442)  (1,481,646)
Total property and equipment, net $ 2,290,284 $ 2,711,558

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, depreciation expense, calculated using straight line method, charged to
operations amounted to $322,706 and $206,897, respectively.

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, depreciation expense, calculated using straight line method, charged to
operations amounted to $619,796 and $366,502, respectively.
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NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Our intangible assets, each definite lived assets, consisted of the following as of March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023:

March 31, September 30, 
    Useful life     2024     2023

Customer relationships nine years $ 1,012,000 $ 1,012,000
Content library two years  198,000  198,000
Total intangible assets, gross  1,210,000  1,210,000

Less: accumulated amortization  (788,333)  (732,111)
Total  (788,333)  (732,111)
Total intangible assets, net $ 421,667 $ 477,889

Amortization expense charged to operations amounted to $28,111 and $28,111, for the three months ended March 31, 2024, and
2023, respectively.

Amortization expense charged to operations amounted to $56,222 and $56,222, for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and
2023, respectively.

Annual amortization expense for the next five years and thereafter is estimated to be $56,222 (remaining in fiscal year 2024),
$112,444, $112,444, $112,444, and $28,113, respectively. The weighted average life of the intangible assets subject to amortization is 3.7
years as of March 31, 2024.

NOTE 6 – OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases

We have operating leases for office space and office equipment. Many of our leases include one or more options to renew, some
of which included options to extend the leases for a long-term period, and some leases included options to terminate the leases within
30 days. In certain of our lease agreements, the rental payments were adjusted periodically to reflect actual charges incurred for capital area
maintenance, utilities, inflation and/or changes in other indexes.

Our lease liability consisted of the following as of March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023:

    March 31, September 30, 
2024 2023

Short term portion $ 66,024 $ —
Long term portion  139,521  —
Total lease liability $ 205,545 $ —

Maturity analysis under these lease agreements are as follows:

2024 $ 41,804
2025 83,607
2026 83,607
2027 17,082
Total undiscounted cash flows  226,100
Less: 10% Present value discount  (20,555)
Lease liability $ 205,545
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We recorded lease expense in sales, general and administration expenses in the consolidated statement of operations:

Three months ended March 31, Six months ended March 31, 
2024     2023     2024     2023

Operating lease expense $ 13,935 $ 17,495 $ 13,935 $ 61,939
Short-term lease expense  2,400  32,431  39,243  34,831
Total lease expense $ 16,335 $ 49,926 $ 53,178 $ 96,770

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, cash payments against lease liabilities totaled $13,935 and $18,792 and
accretion on lease liability of $3,556 and $763.

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, cash payments against lease liabilities totaled $13,935 and $59,138 and
accretion on lease liability of $3,556 and $2,428.  

NOTE 7 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following as of March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023:

    March 31, September 30, 
2024 2023

Accounts payable $ 7,942,137 $ 4,978,920

Performance bonuses  300,000 1,262,000
Interest payable  113,217  175,094
Professional fees 460,247 449,944
Marketing 282,550 800,165
Insurance liabilities 104,707 552,000
Other accrued liabilities 233,557 307,135

Accrued liabilities  1,494,278  3,546,338

Accrued royalties and revenue share 5,256,608 4,930,329

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 14,693,023 $ 13,455,587
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NOTE 8 – DEBT

     Lines of Credit as of March 31, 2024:
Unpaid Contractual

Net Carrying Value Principal Interest Rates Contractual Warrants
Related party lines of credit: Current Long Term Balance Cash Maturity Date issued

$2,500,000 revolving line of credit, December 14, 2023 $ — $ 1,595,620 $ 2,500,000 10%

12 months
prior written

notice 3,125,000
$1,000,000 non- revolving line of credit, March 28, 2024 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 12% 9/24/2024 —
  Total related party lines of credit, net $ 1,000,000 $ 1,595,620 $ 3,500,000

Lines of credit:
$2,200,000 non-revolving line of credit, May 13, 2022 $ 994,033 $ — $ 1,100,000 12% 8/13/2024 314,286
$6,000,000 revolving line of credit, July 29, 2022 1,824,560 — 2,122,807 Greater of 4% or Prime 7/29/2024 —
$4,000,000 non-revolving line of credit, May 10, 2023 — 537,831 800,000 12% 5/10/2025 83,142
  Total lines of credit, net $ 2,818,593 $ 537,831 $ 4,022,807

     Lines of Credit as of September 30, 2023:
Unpaid Contractual

Net Carrying Value Principal Interest Rates Contractual Warrants
Related party lines of credit: Current Long Term Balance Cash Maturity Date issued
$4,000,000 non-revolving line of credit, May 10, 2023 $ — $ 1,959,693 $ 2,266,733 12% 5/10/2025 209,398
  Total related party lines of credit, net $ — $ 1,959,693 $ 2,266,733

Lines of credit:
$2,200,000 non-revolving line of credit, May 13, 2022 $ 2,124,720 $ — $ 2,200,000 12% 11/13/2023 314,286
$6,000,000 revolving line of credit, July 29, 2022 2,985,298 — 3,730,914 Greater of 4% or Prime 7/29/2024 —
$4,000,000 revolving line of credit, May 10, 2023 — 475,523 900,000 12% 5/10/2025 83,142
  Total lines of credit, net $ 5,110,018 $ 475,523 $ 6,830,914
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The following table presents the interest expense related to the contractual interest coupon and the amortization of debt discounts on the
lines of credit:

Three months ended March 31, Six months ended March 31, 
2024 2023 2024 2023

Interest expense $ 194,922 $ 332,516 $ 513,444 $ 672,895
Amortization of debt discounts 528,168 582,994 1,200,041 1,244,329
Total $ 723,090 $ 915,510 $ 1,713,485 $ 1,917,224

Maturity analysis under the line of credit agreements for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2024 $ 4,222,807
2025 3,300,000
2026 —
2027 —
2028  —
Lines of credit, related and non-related party  7,522,807
Less: Debt discount on lines of credit payable  (1,570,763)
Total Lines of credit payable, related and non-related party, net $ 5,952,044

Revolving Lines of Credit

Excel Revolving Line of Credit

Effective as of December 14, 2023, we entered into a Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement with Excel Family Partners, LLLP, an
entity managed by Bruce Cassidy, Chairman of our Board of Directors, (“Excel” and the “Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”) for up to a
principal sum of $2,500,000, under which we may pay down and re-borrow up to the maximum amount of the $2,500,000 limit (the “Excel
Revolving Line of Credit”). Our drawdown on the Excel Revolving Line of Credit is limited to no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the last
three full months’ revenue, not to exceed $1,250,000 in any quarter, and not to exceed in aggregate the outstanding debt amount of $2,500,000.The
Excel Revolving Line of Credit is a perpetual loan, with a maturity date that is twelve (12) months from the date of formal notice of termination by
Excel, and accrues interest, payable semi-annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of interest equal to ten percent (10%) per year. Under the Excel
Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, we granted to Excel a security interest in all of our present and future assets and properties, real or personal,
tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security interest is pari passu with the RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Agreement and the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit (each as described below), but is subordinate in rights to GemCap under the
GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (as described below).
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Under the terms of the Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, on December 14, 2023, we issued to Excel a warrant to purchase up to
an aggregate of 3,125,000 shares of our Common Stock. The warrant has an exercise price of $0.80 per share, which was the closing price of our
Common Stock on December 14, 2023, expires on December 14, 2026, and is exercisable at any time prior to such date, to the extent that after
giving effect to such exercise, Excel and its affiliates would beneficially own, for purposes of Section 13(d) of the  Exchange Act, no more than
29.99% of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock.

The Excel Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $2,519,396 and $0 as of March 31, 2024, and
September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the Excel Revolving Line of Credit in the amount of $118,284 and $0 for the six
months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement

Effective as of July 29, 2022, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Industrial Funding Group, Inc. (the “Initial Lender”) for
a revolving loan credit facility for the initial principal sum of up to $4,000,000, and through the exercise of an accordion feature, a total sum of up to
$10,000,000 (the “GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”), evidenced by a Revolving Loan Secured Promissory Note, also effective as of
July 29, 2022 (the “GemCap Revolving Line of Credit”). Shortly after the effective date of the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit, the Initial Lender
assigned the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, and the loan documents related thereto, to GemCap Solutions, LLC (“GemCap” or
“Senior Lender.”)  Availability for borrowing under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit is dependent upon our assets in certain eligible accounts
and measures of revenue, subject to reduction for reserves that the Senior Lender may require in its discretion, and the accordion feature is a
provision whereby we may request that the Senior Lender increase availability under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit, subject to its sole
discretion. Effective as of October 27, 2022, we entered into Amendment Number 1 to the Loan and Security Agreement and to the Revolving Loan
Agreement Schedule, and the Amended and Restated Secured Promissory Note (Revolving Loans) with the Senior Lender to increase the principal
sum available under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement from $4,000,000 to $6,000,000. The GemCap Revolving Line of Credit
matures on July 29, 2024, and began accruing interest on the unpaid principal balance of advances, payable monthly in arrears, on September 7,
2022, at an annual rate equal to the greater of (I) the sum of (i) the “Prime Rate” as reported in the “Money Rates” column of The Wall Street
Journal, adjusted as and when such Prime Rate changes, plus (ii) zero percent (0.00%), and (II) four percent (4.00%).

Under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, we have granted to the Senior Lender a first-priority security interest in all of our
present and future property and assets, including products and proceeds thereof. In connection with the loan, our existing secured lenders, some of
whom are the RAT Lenders under our RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit (each as defined below) (collectively, the “Subordinated Lenders”)
delivered subordination agreements (the “GemCap Subordination Agreements”) to the Senior Lender. We are permitted to make regularly scheduled
payments, including payments upon maturity, to such subordinated lenders and potentially other payments subject to a measure of cash flow and
receiving certain financing activity proceeds, in accordance with the terms of the GemCap Subordination Agreements. In connection with the
delivery of the GemCap Subordination Agreements by the Subordinated Lenders, on July 29, 2022, we issued warrants to each Subordinated Lender
on identical terms for an aggregate of up to 296,329 shares of our Common Stock (each, a “Subordination Agreement Warrant”). Each
Subordination Agreement Warrant has an exercise price of $5.25 per share, expires on July 29, 2025, and is exercisable at any time prior to such
date. One warrant for 191,570 warrant shares was issued to Eagle Investment Group, LLC, an entity managed by Bruce Cassidy, Chairman of our
Board of Directors (“Mr. Cassidy”), as directed by its affiliate, Excel Family Partners, LLLP (“Excel”), an entity also managed by Mr. Cassidy, one
of the Subordinated Lenders. The Subordinated Lenders receiving warrants for the remaining 104,759 warrant shares were also entitled to receive a
cash payment of $22,000 six months from the date of the GemCap Subordination Agreements, representing one percent (1.00%) of the outstanding
principal amount of the loan held by such Subordinated Lenders. This cash payment was made to those Subordinated Lenders on January 25, 2023.
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The GemCap Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $2,147,821 and $3,757,074 as of March 31,
2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit in the amount of $707,962 and
$714,740 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Non-Revolving Lines of Credit

RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit

Effective as of May 13, 2022, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “RAT Non-Revolving Line
of Credit Agreement”) with several institutions and individuals (each a “RAT Lender” and collectively, the “RAT Lenders”) and RAT Investment
Holdings, LP, as administrator of the loan (the “Loan Administrator”) for an aggregate principal amount of $2,200,000 (the “RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit”), evidenced by a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note (the “RAT Note”), also effective as of May 13, 2022. Pursuant to
the terms of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit matured eighteen ( 18) months from the
effective date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit (the “Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”) and accrues interest, payable semi-
annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of interest equal to twelve percent (12%) per year. Under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, we
granted to the RAT Lenders a security interest in all of our present and future assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever
located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security interest is pari passu with the Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (as
defined above) and the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement (as defined below) and (each of which are subordinated in connection with our
GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (as defined above)).

In connection with the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, on May 13, 2022, we issued a warrant (collectively, the “RAT
Loan Warrants”) to each RAT Lender for an aggregate of up to 209,522 shares of our Common Stock. Each RAT Loan Warrant had an exercise
price of $5.25 per share, expires on May 13, 2025, and is exercisable at any time prior to the expiration date.

Effective as of November 13, 2023, we entered into a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment (the “RAT Non-
Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment”) with the RAT Lenders to: (i) extend the RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date from eighteen ( 18)
months to twenty-seven (27) months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, or August 13, 2024 (the “First Extended
RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”); and (ii) amend the payment terms of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit such that payments of interest or
principal under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the RAT Note will be due and payable from November 13, 2023, to the
First Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date, as follows (a) one payment of $374,000 (comprised of accrued interest of $132,000 due through
November 13, 2023, an initial payment of principal of $220,000 and $22,000 as consideration to extend the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity
Date) due on November 13, 2023; and (b) nine (9) monthly payments of principal of $220,000 plus accrued interest, commencing December 13,
2023. In consideration for the extension of the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date, we agreed to amend the terms of the RAT Loan Warrants
as well as the Subordination Agreement Warrants issued to the RAT Lenders in connection with the GemCap Subordination Agreements described
above to reduce the warrant exercise price to $1.00. See “—GemCap Revolving Line of Credit.” We also agreed to apply one-third (1/3) of the net
proceeds of any capital raise that takes place subsequent to the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment, other than
proceeds from an equity offering under our ATM Sales Agreement (as defined below) or from an affiliate or insider, toward paying down the then
outstanding principal amount due under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit. Pursuant to the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement
Amendment #1, each RAT Lender agreed to enter into a lock-up agreement restricting the disposal of any shares of our Common Stock that are
issued in connection with the exercise of the RAT Loan Warrants or the Subordination Agreement Warrants for a period of twelve (12)
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months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #1. Effective as of November 13, 2023, we issued an
Amended and Restated Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note Amendment to the Lenders reflecting the extension of the Original Line of
Credit Maturity Date.  

The RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $1,106,473 and $2,300,899 as of March
31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit in the amount of $310,009
and $446,764 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

May 2023 Secured Loan

Effective as of May 10, 2023, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “May 2023 Secured Line of
Credit Agreement”) with several individuals and institutional lenders for aggregate loans of up to $4.0 million (the “May 2023 Secured Line of
Credit”), evidenced by Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Notes (each a “May 2023 Secured Note” and collectively, the “May 2023
Secured Notes”), also effective as of May 10, 2023. The May 2023 Secured Line of Credit matures twenty-four (24) months from the date of the
May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement and accrues interest, payable semi-annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of interest equal to twelve
percent (12%) per year. We granted to the lenders under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement a security interest in all of our present and
future assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security
interest is pari passu with the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, but is subordinate
in rights to GemCap under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement. See “— GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement.”

In connection with the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit, on May 10, 2023, we agreed to issue to each lender under the May 2023 Secured
Line of Credit Agreement, upon drawdown, a warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 369,517 shares of our Common Stock. The warrants have
an exercise price of $4.33 per share, expire on May 10, 2026, and is exercisable at any time prior to such date.

As of May 10, 2023, Excel, an entity managed by Mr. Cassidy, had committed to be a lender under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit
Agreement for an aggregate loan of $2.65 million, and as of September 11, 2023, Excel had not loaned any funds under the May 2023 Secured Line
of Credit. On May 31, 2023, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “Excel $2.2M Secured Line of Credit
Agreement”) with Excel for an aggregate principal amount of up to $2,200,000 (the “Excel $2.2M Line of Credit”), evidenced by a Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Promissory Note (the “Excel $2.2M Note”). Pursuant to the terms of a Pay Off Letter Agreement with Excel dated September 12,
2023, we refinanced the outstanding principal and interest of the Excel $2.2M Line of Credit to be included as part of the obligations of the May
2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement.  As a result of such refinancing, as of September 12, 2023, no principal or interest remained outstanding
under the Excel $2.2M Secured Line of Credit, and the Excel $2.2M Secured Line of Credit Agreement was terminated, and as of September 12,
2023, Excel had loaned $2,266,733 under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement and received a warrant to purchase 209,398 shares of
our Common Stock.

As of December 14, 2023, the outstanding principal and interest on Excel’s portion of the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit was
$2,328,617 (the “Excel May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Pay Off-Amount”), of the total aggregate principal and interest outstanding under the May
2023 Secured Line of Credit of $3,262,817.  On December 14, 2023, Excel agreed to convert the Excel May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Pay-Off
Amount owed under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement into 2,910,771 shares of our Common Stock at a conversion price per share
of $0.80.  In addition, in connection with the Warrant Repricing (as defined below), on December 14, 2023, Excel agreed to the reprice the per share
warrant exercise price of the warrant for 209,398 shares of our Common Stock to $0.80 per warrant share and immediately exercised the warrant,
delivering the net proceeds of $167,518.40 to us.  See “—Repricing and Exercise of Certain Warrants.”
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On December 31, 2023, one of the remaining lenders under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit converted $101,699.83 in outstanding
principal and interest into 127,124 shares of our Common Stock at a conversion price per share of $0.80. As of March 31, 2024, a total principal
amount of $800,000 remained outstanding on the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit and warrants for a total of 83,142 warrant shares had been
issued to the remaining lenders in connection with the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit and remained outstanding.

The May 2023 Secured Loan had a principal balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $861,333 and $3,214,769 as of March 31,
2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the 2023 Secured Loan in the amount of $576,229 and $0 for the six
months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Excel $1.0M Line of Credit

On March 28, 2024, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement with Excel (“Excel $1.0M Secured Line of
Credit Agreement”) for an aggregate principal amount of up to $1,000,000 (the “Excel $1.0M Line of Credit”), evidenced by a Secured Non-
Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note (the “Excel $1.0M Note”). The Excel $1.0M Line of Credit matures one hundred eighty (180) days from
the date of the Excel $1.0M Secured Line of Credit Agreement (the “Excel $1.0M Line of Maturity Date”) and accrues interest, payable in arrears
on the Excel $1.0M Line of Credit Maturity Date, at a fixed rate of interest equal to twelve percent (12%) per year.

Under the Excel $1.0M Secured Line of Credit Agreement, we granted to Excel a security interest in all of our present and future assets and
properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security interest is subordinate
in rights to GemCap under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement. 

The Excel $1.0M Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $1,001,000 and $0 as of March 31, 2024, and
September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the Excel $1.0M Line of Credit in the amount of $1,000 and $0 for the six
months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

See Note 12 – Stock Options, Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) and Warrants for discussion on the repricing and exercise of certain existing
warrants.
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NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We may be involved in legal proceedings, claims and assessments arising in the ordinary course of business. Such matters are
subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. There are no such loss contingencies that are included in the
financial statements as of March 31, 2024.

NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are natural persons or other entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control another party or exercise
significant influence over the party making financial and operating decisions. Related parties include other parties that are subject to
common control or that are subject to common significant influences.

500 Limited

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, we paid 500 Limited $145,500 and $219,400, respectively, for programming
services provided to Loop Media. 500 Limited is an entity controlled by Liam McCallum, our Chief Product and Technology Officer.

See Note 8 – Debt for discussion on the following:

● GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and Warrants

● Excel Revolving Line of Credit

● May 2023 Secured Loan

● Excel $1.0M Line of Credit

See Note 12 – Stock Options, Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) and Warrants for discussion on the repricing and exercise of certain
existing warrants.

NOTE 11 –STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Change in Number of Authorized and Outstanding Shares

On August 15, 2023, the Loop stockholders voted at our 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to approve an amendment to our
Restated Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of shares of common stock, par value of $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”),
authorized for issuance thereunder from 105,555,556 shares to 150,000,000 shares.

On September 21, 2022, a 1 for 3 reverse stock split of our Common Stock became effective. All share and per share information
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and footnotes has been retroactively adjusted for the effects of the reverse split for
all periods presented.

Common Stock

Our authorized capital stock consists of 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per share, and 3,333,334 shares
of preferred stock, $0.0001 par value per share.

As of March 31, 2024, and 2023, there were 71,173,736 and 56,381,209, respectively, shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding.
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Six months ended March 31, 2024

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 1,850,874 shares of common stock upon the exercise of warrants.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 2,910,771 shares of common stock to a board member upon the
conversion of non-revolving line of credit plus accrued interest in the amount of $2,328,617.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 127,124 shares of common stock upon the conversion of non-revolving
line of credit plus accrued interest in the amount of $101,699.83.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 60,810 shares of common stock for capital raise costs.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 311,889 shares of common stock for consulting fees.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 292,117 shares of common stock for vested RSUs.

See Note 12 – Stock Options and Warrants for stock compensation discussion.

Six months ended March 31, 2023

There was no activity during the six months ended March 31, 2023.

See Note 12 – Stock Options and Warrants for stock compensation discussion.

NOTE 12 – STOCK OPTIONS, RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (RSUs) AND WARRANTS

Options

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions. The fair value of stock-based payment awards was
estimated using the Black-Scholes option model with a volatility figure derived from using our historical stock prices. We account for the
expected life of options based on the contractual life of options for non-employees. For employees, we account for the expected life of
options in accordance with the “simplified” method, which is used for “plain-vanilla” options, as defined in the accounting standards
codification. The risk-free interest rate was determined from the implied yields of U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with a remaining life
consistent with the expected term of the options.

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the six months ended March 31, 2024:

Number of Weighted Average     Weighted Average Aggregate
    Options     Exercise Price     Remaining Contractual Term     Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at September 30, 2023  8,849,305 $ 3.84  6.35 $ —
Grants  66,666 0.36  360
Exercised  —  —   
Expired  (346,297)  4.73   
Forfeited  (355,911)  2.70   72
Outstanding at March 31, 2024  8,213,763 $ 3.82  5.67 $ 288
Exercisable at March 31, 2024  7,419,609 $ 3.67  5.36 $ —

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding tables represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on options with an exercise
price less than our stock price of $0.37 as of March 31, 2024, and $5.75 as of March 31, 2023, which would have been received by the
option holders had those option holders exercised their options as of that date.
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We recognize compensation expense for all stock options granted using the fair value-based method of accounting. During the six
months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 66,666 options valued at $0.36 per option.  As of March 31, 2024, the total compensation cost
related to nonvested awards not yet recognized is $2,382,770 and the weighted average period over which expense is expected to be
recognized is 26.5 months.

We calculated the fair value of options issued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with the following assumptions:

    March 31, 2024

Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 0.36
Expected life  6.08 years
Risk-free interest rate  4.67 %
Expected volatility  52.35 %
Expected dividends yield  — %
Forfeiture rate  — %

The stock-based compensation expense related to option grants was $1,658,417 and $3,298,273, for the six months ended March
31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

On September 18, 2022, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved Restricted Stock Unit (“RSU”) awards
to certain officers and key employees pursuant to the terms of the Loop Media, Inc. Amended and Restated 2020 Equity Incentive
Compensation Plan (the “2020 Plan”).

On September 22, 2022, we granted an aggregate of 890,000 RSUs, which vest over time subject to continued service. Each RSU
was valued at the public offering price during our initial public offering of $5.00 per share, and twenty-five percent (25%) of the RSUs vest
on the one-year anniversary of the grant date and the remainder in equal quarterly installments over the following three-year period.

On January 3, 2023, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved RSU awards as compensation to members
of our Board of Directors pursuant to the 2020 Plan.

On January 3, 2023, we granted an aggregate of 212,004 RSUs which vest over time subject to continued service. Each RSU was
valued at $6.23 per share. Twenty-five percent (25%) of 130,464 RSUs vest on the one-year anniversary of the grant date and the remainder
in equal quarterly installments over the following three-year period. One hundred percent (100%) of 81,540 RSUs vested on the day after
the end of the fiscal year in which the grant was made.  

On July 1, 2023, we granted an aggregate of 54,393 RSUs which vested one hundred percent (100%) on the grant date.  Each RSU
was valued at $2.39 per share.

On January 1, 2024, we granted an aggregate of 140,000 RSUs which will vest in equal semi-annual installments over a two-year
term, beginning on the six (6) month anniversary of the grant date until all RSUs are fully vested.  Each RSU was valued at $1.00 per share.

On March 15, 2024, we granted an aggregate of 3,065,000 RSUs which will vest over a two-year period with fifty percent (50%)
vesting on the one (1) year anniversary of the grant date and the remainder at twelve and a half percent (12.5%) on a quarterly basis
thereafter until all RSUs are fully vested.  Each RSU was valued at $0.50 per share.

On March 15, 2024, we granted 600,000 RSUs, which will vest over a four-year period, with one quarter (1/4) of the shares
subject to the RSUs vesting on the one (1) year anniversary of the grant date and the remaining shares vesting
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equally on a quarterly basis beginning three (3) months after the one-year anniversary until all RSUs are fully vested.  Each RSU was
valued at $0.50 per share.

The following table summarizes the RSU activity for the six months ended March 31, 2024:

Number of Weighted Average Aggregate
RSUs     Fair Value     Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at September 30, 2023 860,754 $ 5.30  $ 427,795
Granted 3,805,000   
Vested (222,281)    
Expired —    
Forfeited —    
Outstanding at March 31, 2024 4,443,473 $ 1.23  $ 1,647,897

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding tables represents the total pretax intrinsic value, based on our stock price of $0.37 as
of March 31, 2024, and $5.75 as of March 31, 2023, which would have been received by the RSU holders as of that date.

The stock-based compensation expense related to RSU grants was $702,979 and $766,418, for the six months ended March 31,
2024, and 2023, respectively.

As of March 31, 2024, the total compensation cost related to nonvested RSU awards not yet recognized was $5,137,630 and the
weighted average period over which expense is expected to be recognized in months was 29.1.

Warrants

The following table summarizes the warrant activity for the six months ended March 31, 2024:

Number of Weighted average exercise
shares price per share

Outstanding at September 30, 2023 5,592,573 $ 5.74
Issued 3,125,000 0.80
Exercised (1,850,874) 0.80
Expired — —
Outstanding at March 31, 2024  6,866,699 $ 3.96

We record all warrants granted using the fair value-based method of accounting.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we issued 3,125,000 warrants in conjunction with a revolving line of credit. We
allocated the fair value of the warrants at inception as deferred costs.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we recorded debt discount of $1,003,125 for the warrants issued in conjunction with
lines of credit and recorded the straight-line amortization ratably over the life of the debt as interest expense.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we recorded consulting expense of $78,966 as a result of current period vesting of
previously issued warrants to various companies for consulting services.
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We calculated the fair value of warrants issued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with the following assumptions:

    March 31, 2024

Weighted average fair value of warrants granted $ 0.80
Expected life  3.00 years
Risk-free interest rate  4.09 %
Expected volatility  46.56 %
Expected dividends yield  — %
Forfeiture rate  — %

Repricing and Exercise of Certain Existing Warrants

On December 14, 2023, we agreed to offer to amend certain existing warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to 4,055,240
shares of our Common Stock (each such warrant an “Existing Warrant”) to reduce the respective exercise prices thereof to $0.80 per share
(such new price being referred to as the “Amended Warrant Exercise Price”), which was the closing price per share of our common stock as
quoted on the NYSE American on December 13, 2023, on the condition that the holder of each Existing Warrant would commit to exercise
the Existing Warrant within a certain period of time, paying the aggregate Amended Warrant Exercise Price of each respective Existing
Warrant in cash to us (the “Warrant Repricing”). As of December 14, 2023, Existing Warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to
786,482 shares of our common stock were held by Excel and Eagle Investment Group, LLC, entities managed by Bruce Cassidy, Sr.,
Executive Chairman of our Board of Directors, and Existing Warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to 443,332 shares of our Common
Stock were held by Denise Penz, a member of our Board of Directors. In connection with the Warrant Repricing, each of Mr. Cassidy and
Ms. Penz exercised their Existing Warrants, resulting in net proceeds to us of $983,851.

As of March 31, 2024, holders of Existing Warrants (including those held by Mr. Cassidy and Ms. Penz) had exercised an
aggregate of 1,850,874 shares for an aggregate exercise price of $1,480,699. No other Existing Warrants have been repriced or exercised
under the Warrant Repricing.  

NOTE 13 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have evaluated all subsequent events through the date of this quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the SEC, to ensure that this
filing includes appropriate disclosure of events both recognized in the financial statements as of March 31, 2024, and events that occurred
after March 31, 2024, but which were not recognized in the financial statements.

On April 18, 2024, we entered into a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment #2 (the “RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #2”) with the RAT Lenders to: (i) extend the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date from
eighteen (18) months to thirty-two (32) months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, or January 13, 2025
(the “Second Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”); and (ii) amend the payment terms of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit
such that payments of interest and principal under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the RAT Note will be due and
payable from April 13, 2024, to the Second Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date, as follows: (a) one payment of $121,000,
comprised of accrued interest of $11,000 through April 13, 2024, and an initial payment of principal of $110,000, due on April 13, 2024;
and (b) nine (9) monthly payments of principal of $110,000, plus accrued interest, commencing May 13, 2024.  We issued a Second
Amended and Restated Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note Amendment, effective April 13, 2024, to the RAT Lenders
reflecting the extension of the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

STATEMENT ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report (“Report”) on Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of
historical fact are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of these provisions, including any projections of earnings, revenues, or other
financial items; any statements of the plans, strategies, and objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning
proposed new products, services, or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; statements of
belief; and any statement of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Such forward-looking statements are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements involve significant risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the following:
competition, promotional costs and risk of declining revenues. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in such
forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this filing, and
we assume no obligation to update such forward-looking statements. The following discusses our financial condition and results of
operations based upon our financial statements which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. It should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere
herein.

The following discussion and analysis provides information which our management believes to be relevant to an assessment and
understanding of our results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read together with our financial statements and
the notes to the financial statements, which are included in this Report.

Overview

We are a multichannel digital video platform media company that uses marketing technology, or “MarTech,” to generate our
revenue and offer our services. Our technology and vast library of videos and licensed content enable us to curate and distribute short-form
videos to connected televisions (“CTV”) and other screens; in out-of-home (“OOH”) dining, hospitality and retail establishments,
convenience stores and other locations and venues to enable the operators of those locations to inform, entertain and engage their
customers. Our technology also provides businesses the ability to promote and advertise their products via digital signage and provides
third-party advertisers with a targeted marketing and promotional tool for their products and services. We also allow our business clients to
access our service without advertisements by paying a monthly subscription fee.

We offer hand-curated music video content licensed from major and independent record labels, including Universal Music Group
(“Universal”), Sony Music Entertainment (“Sony”), and Warner Music Group (“Warner” and collectively with Universal and Sony, the
“Music Labels”), as well as non-music video content. Our non-music video content is predominantly licensed or acquired from third
parties, including action sports clips, drone and nature footage, trivia, news headlines, lifestyle channels and kid-friendly videos, as well as
movie, television and video game trailers, amongst other content. We distribute our content and advertising inventory to digital screens
located in OOH locations primarily through (i) our owned and operated platform (the “O&O Platform”) of Loop Media-designed “small-
box” streaming Android media players (“Loop Players”) and legacy ScreenPlay (as defined below) computers and (ii) through screens
(“Partner Screens”) on digital platforms owned and operated by third parties (each a “Partner Platform” and collectively the “Partner
Platforms,” and together with the O&O Platform, the “Loop Platform”).

As of March 31, 2024, we had approximately 83,000 active Loop Players and Partner Screens across the Loop Platform, which
include 32,658 quarterly active Loop Players, or QAUs (as defined below) across our O&O Platform, a decrease of 0.23% (or 76 QAUs)
from the 32,734 QAUs for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, and a decrease of 1,125 from the 33,783 QAUs for the quarter ended
December 31, 2023, and approximately 50,000 Partner Screens across our Partner Platforms, an increase of 108% (or approximately
26,000) over approximately 24,000 Partner Screens for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, and an increase of approximately 7,000 Partner
Screens over approximately 43,000 Partner Screens for quarter ended December 31, 2023. See “— Key Performance Indicators.”
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We have two primary constituents that are included in our customer base: the OOH locations we service and the advertisers who
purchase advertising inventory on the Loop Platform. We earn revenue from these customers primarily by selling advertising inventory on
the Loop Platform and by collecting subscription fees from our O&O Platform owners and operators that are streaming advertising-free
content.

The O&O Platform

The foundation of our business model is built around the OOH experience, with a focus on distributing licensed music videos and
other content to public-facing business venues and locations. Our OOH offering has supported hospitality and retail businesses for over 20
years, originally through ScreenPlay, Inc. (“ScreenPlay”), which we fully acquired in 2019. Since the acquisition of ScreenPlay, we have
primarily focused on acquiring OOH clients throughout the United States. We have sought very limited expansion into Canada, New
Zealand and Australia.

We deliver content across our O&O Platform to the owners and operators of OOH locations who sign up for our media service.
We sell advertising impressions contained in the content streams to demand sources, including demand-side platforms (“DSPs”), supply-
side platforms (“SSPs”) and advertisers, who pay us to fill those impressions and have their ads delivered into the OOH locations that
utilize our services. We also allow OOH locations on our O&O Platform to access our content without advertisements by paying a monthly
subscription fee.

From a business operations standpoint, for the O&O Platform business, we view our customers as the owners and operators of the
OOH locations that use our content services to engage and entertain the customers that visit the OOH locations. Our customer services
team works with the owners and operators of OOH locations in our O&O Platform business to ensure our customers are being properly
serviced and addressing any questions about the service, content, advertising performance and other matters.

From an accounting standpoint, for the O&O Platform business, our customers are considered to be those persons that provide
revenue to us, which includes the owners and operators of the OOH locations that utilize a subscription-based service, and the advertising
demand sources (including DSPs, SSPs and advertisers) that purchase our advertising inventory on the O&O Platform. From an accounting
standpoint, the owners and operators of the OOH locations utilizing a free advertising-based service on our O&O Platform are not our
customers. Instead, it is the advertising demand sources that are our customers because they are providing revenue to us (by way of
purchasing advertising inventory) for the streaming of content to those OOH locations utilizing an ad-free service.

We record as cost of revenue in the O&O Platform business certain costs and expenses associated with operating such business,
including the cost of content, streaming costs, and content hosting fees.  We procure content from third parties though licensing fees or by
purchasing the content outright. Certain of our content, including our music video and certain third-party non-music content, are under
licenses that contain a revenue share arrangement. We and the licensor of the content negotiate and pre-agree the percentage of revenue to
which each party is entitled. The cost of content, including any payments to licenses under a revenue share license, is the single largest
component of the cost of revenue associated with the O&O Platform business.  

The Partner Platform

The screens in our Partner Platform business may deliver content that we curate and deliver or content that is provided by the
owners and operators of third-party digital platforms. We make available to our Partner Platforms clients’ channels of original content
developed using licensed or purchased content that is then reformatted into short-form content suitable for commercial use.

We provide advertising demand services to third parties by selling ad impressions available on the Partner Platform to advertising
demand sources (including DSPs, SSPs and advertisers) who pay us to fill those impressions and have ads delivered across the Partner
Platform. If the advertising impressions are filled with advertisements, we will fulfill our obligation and be paid as the publisher of the
advertisement. If advertising impressions are not purchased, the content will play without advertisements and no revenue will be earned by
us.
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From a business operations standpoint, for our Partner Platform services, we view as our customers the owners and operators of
the third-party digital platforms that utilize our content and advertising services and enable such third parties to better monetize the screens
on their digital platforms. We may, in certain instances, also provide content across the Partner Platform.

Our customer services team works with the owners and operators of the third-party digital platforms in our Partner Platform
business to ensure our customers are being properly serviced and address any questions about the service, content, advertising performance
and other matters.

From an accounting standpoint, for the Partner Platform business, our customers are the advertising demand sources (including
DSPs, SSPs and advertisers) because they are providing revenue to us (by way of purchasing advertising inventory) for the streaming of
content across the Partner Platform. The Partner Platform business operates a free ad-supported business model and has no subscription
fees.

The revenue share arrangements in the O&O Platform business are included in the cost of revenue. The content streamed on
the Partner Platforms is content we procure on licenses that do not contain an element of revenue share or content provided by the third-
party partner who owns and operates the screens on the Partner Platform. As such, there are no content partner revenue share
arrangements on the Partner Platform. There is, however, a revenue share arrangement with the third-party partner who owns and
operates the screens on the Partner Platform. We deduct from the revenue we generate in the Partner Platform business certain costs and
expenses associated with operating such business (including streaming costs and content hosting) and then allocate the remaining
revenue between us and the third-party digital platform provider, based on pre-agreed negotiated percentages. The percentage of
revenue we pass along to third-party digital platform providers is recorded as cost of revenue and is our single largest cost of revenue
component for the Partner Platform business.

Recent Developments

Operational and Cost-Cutting Review

Our Executive Chairman (as defined below – see “—Leadership Changes and Restructuring”) and members of our senior
management team recently conducted an operational and cost-cutting review across the Company which it believes will provide the
framework to making us more competitive in the CTV for business/DOOH industry and will accelerate our potential path to break even
and operating profitability.

As a result of this review, we have, since March 31, 2024:

● implemented leadership changes. See “ – Leadership Changes and Restructuring” below:  

● laid off or furloughed nine (9) full-time employees, with additional furloughs and terminations being considered in the near
term;

● implemented temporary salary reductions, including an additional 20% salary reduction by the senior executive team, in
addition to the 20% temporary salary reduction by the executive team in October 2023 (the leadership changes, laid off and
furloughed employees, and latest salary reductions are expected to result in an annual aggregate cash payroll reduction of
approximately $2 million);

● reviewed existing third-party vendor products and services with a view to eliminating approximately $750,000 in ongoing
yearly costs and expenses beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2025;

● eliminated our “Loop Rewards” monthly incentive payments to venue operators for maintaining target hours of activation for
Loop Players, eliminating one of the most significant expenses contributing to sales, general and administrative expenses.  Our
Loop Rewards program incurred costs of $3.0 million for our fiscal year 2023 and $0.41 million for our first quarter of fiscal
year 2024;

● initiated discussions with certain of our third-party content providers and other licensors, with a view to restructuring existing
or new license agreements, and eliminating certain fixed fee content licenses, to more closely align payments to content
licensors with related content revenue;
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● continued to develop and promote lower cost channels to reduce or eliminate third party content license fees, where possible;

● initiated discussions with one of our significant Loop Player affiliate distribution partners with a view to better incentivize
them to increase distribution and activation of our Loop Players across their marketing network;

● planned the introduction of a two-tier music video service offering, which will include a “basic tier” consisting of fewer than
ten music video channels provided under a free ad-based service, and a “premium tier” of the full library of curated music
video channels provided under a subscription service;

● explored and continue to explore potential strategic alternatives to maximize shareholder value, as well as evaluated and
continue to evaluate potential financing opportunities; and

● extended the payment terms of one of our debt facilities to ease short-term cash requirements. See “– Future Capital
Requirements – Non-Revolving Lines of Credit – RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit.”

These cost-cutting measures are expected to result in material reductions in the cost of revenue and selling general and
administrative expenses if and when they are implemented. As the above initiatives and changes take effect, we expect to see improved
margins for the business. There can be no assurances that we will be able to effect all changes that we have identified or that any such
changes will achieve the desired results.

Deficiency Letter

On April 23, 2024, we received a deficiency letter (the “Deficiency Letter”) from the NYSE American indicating that the
Company is not in compliance with the NYSE American continued listing standards set forth in Sections 1003(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the
NYSE American Company Guide. Section 1003(a)(i) of the NYSE American Company Guide requires a listed company’s stockholders’
equity be at least $2.0 million if it has reported losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in two of its three most recent fiscal
years. Section 1003(a)(ii) of the NYSE American Company Guide requires a listed company’s stockholders’ equity be at least $4.0 million
if it has reported losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in three of its four most recent fiscal years. Section 1003(a)(iii) of the
NYSE American Company Guide requires a listed company’s stockholders’ equity be at least $6.0 million if it has reported losses from
continuing operations and/or net losses in its five most recent fiscal years. The Deficiency Letter noted that we reported stockholders’ deficit
of $(3.7) million as of December 31, 2023, and losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in its five most recent fiscal years ended
September 30, 2023.  The Deficiency Letter also noted that we are not currently eligible for any exemption set forth in Section 1003(a) of
the NYSE American Company Guide.  

As a result, we are now subject to the procedures and requirements set forth in Section 1009 of the NYSE American Company
Guide. In order to maintain our listing on the NYSE American, we are required to submit a plan of compliance (the “Plan”) by May 23,
2024, addressing how the Company intends to regain compliance with Sections 1003(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the NYSE American Company
Guide by October 23, 2025.

We intend to submit the Plan by the May 23, 2024 deadline. If the NYSE American accepts the Plan, we will be able to continue
our listing during the Plan period and will be subject to continued periodic review by the NYSE American staff. If the Plan is not submitted,
or not accepted, or is accepted but we do not make progress consistent with the Plan during the Plan period, we will be subject to delisting
procedures as set forth in the NYSE American Company Guide.

Although we are committed to considering all available options to regain compliance with the NYSE American’s stockholders’
equity requirements, there can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve compliance with the NYSE American’s continued listing
standards within the required time frame.

Leadership Changes and Restructuring

Effective March 17, 2024, Jon Niermann stepped down as Chief Executive Officer and the Board of Directors unanimously
appointed Justis Kao, previously our Chief Content Officer, as Interim Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
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Niermann remains a member of our Board of Directors and management team, maintaining a strategic focus on revenue and distribution.
Effective as of the same day, Mr. Bruce Cassidy, previously the Chairman of our Board of Directors, was appointed Executive Chairman of
the Board. In addition, Bob Gruters, who served as our Chief Revenue Officer, resigned after three years to pursue another business
opportunity outside of the Company, but remains an advisor to the Company, and Randy Greenberg, who served as our Chief Operating
Officer and Chief Marketing Officer, stepped down from those roles and left the Company to pursue other business opportunities.

Key Performance Indicators

We review our quarterly active units (“QAUs”) and average revenue per unit player (“ARPU”), among other key performance
indicators, to evaluate our business, measure our performance, identify trends affecting our business, formulate financial projections and
make strategic decisions.

Quarterly Active Units

We define an “active unit” as (i) an ad-supported Loop Player or DOOH (defined below) location using our ad- supported service
through our “Loop for Business” application or using a DOOH venue-owned computer screening our content that is online, used on our
O&O Platform, playing content and has checked into the Loop Media analytics system at least once in the 90-day period ending on the date
of measurement, or (ii) a DOOH location customer using our subscription service on our O&O Platform at any time during the 90-day
period. We use “QAU” to refer to the number of such active units during such period. We do not count towards our QAUs any Loop Players
or screens used on our Partner Platform.

Digital out-of-home (“DOOH”) is a form of media that is delivered digitally outside of the home on billboards, signage, displays,
televisions, and other devices in OOH locations, including restaurants, retail shops, healthcare facilities, sports and entertainment venues,
and other public or non-residential spaces.

As of March 31, 2024, we had approximately 83,000 active Loop Players and Partner Screens across the Loop Platform, which
includes 32,658 QAUs across our O&O Platform, a decrease of 0.2% (or 76 QAUs) from the 32,734 QAUs for the quarter ended March 31,
2023, and a decrease of 3% (or 1,125 QAUs) from the 33,783 QAUs for the quarter ended December 31, 2023, and approximately 50,000
Partner Screens across our Partner Platforms, an increase of 108% (or approximately 26,000 Partner Screens) over approximately 24,000
Partner Screens for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, and an increase of 16% (or 7,000 Partner Screens) over approximately 43,000
Partner Screens for the quarter ended December 31, 2023.  

Our QAU footprint for the second quarter of fiscal 2024 was reduced from the prior periods as a result of natural attrition of Loop
Players that were not immediately replaced, as we continued to transition to a more targeted distribution model, pivoting our focus to
certain designated advertising markets and geographies, as well as more desirable out-of-home locations and venues, including convenience
stores, restaurants, bars, and other retail establishments. We believe this targeted distribution plan will, over time, allow us to grow our
QAUs quarter on quarter and provide a more robust distribution platform for our advertising partners.

Many of the more desirable advertising markets and geographies generally experience greater competition, resulting in slower
distribution growth in those markets, as compared to the less desirable markets. As such, we expect the primary drivers of revenue growth
going forward to be a combination of increased QAUs, as well as higher CPMs and advertising impression fill rates associated with more
desirable advertising markets and geographies.

Average Revenue Per Unit

We define a “unit player” as (i) an ad-supported Loop Player (or a DOOH location using our ad- supported service through our
“Loop for Business” application or using a DOOH location-owned computer screening our content) that is online, used on our O&O
Platform, playing content and has checked into the Loop Media analytics system at least once in the 90-day period or (ii) a DOOH location
customer using our paid subscription service on our O&O Platform at any time
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during the 90-day period. A unit player that is supported by our advertising-based revenue model is an ad-supported unit player and a unit
player that is supported by a subscription-based revenue model is a subscription unit player. We calculate advertising ARPU (“AD ARPU”)
by dividing quarterly revenues from our DOOH ad-supported service on our O&O Platform for the period by QAUs for our ad-supported
unit players on our O&O Platform. We calculate subscription ARPU (“SUB ARPU”) by dividing quarterly revenues from our DOOH
subscription-supported service on our O&O Platform for the period by QAUs for our subscription-supported unit players on our O&O
Platform. We do not include in our unit players count, AD ARPU or SUB ARPU any Loop Players or screens used on our Partner Platform.

Our AD ARPU fluctuates based on a number of factors, including the length of time in a quarter that a unit player is activated and
operating, the cost-per-thousand ad impressions (“CPMs”) we are able to achieve for our advertising impressions, and the advertising fill
rates that we are able to achieve. Our SUB ARPU fluctuates based on a number of factors, including the timing of the start of a customer
subscription for a subscription-supported unit player, the number of ad-supported unit players we have, and the price clients pay for those
subscriptions. An increase in the number of unit players over the course of a quarterly period may have the effect of decreasing quarterly
ARPU, particularly if such players are added towards the end of the quarterly period. Increases or decreases in ARPU may not correspond
with increases or decreases in our revenue, and ARPU may be calculated in a manner different than any similar key performance indicator
used by other companies.

For the quarter ended March 31, 2024, AD ARPU was $64, compared to $142 for the quarter ended December 31, 2023, a 55%
decrease. AD ARPU was $90 for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, $114 for the quarter ended June 30, 2023, and $99 for the quarter
ended March 31, 2023.

For the quarter ended March 31, 2024, SUB ARPU was $554, compared to $426 for the quarter ended December 31, 2023, a 30%
increase. SUB ARPU was $353 for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, $222 for the quarter ended June 30, 2023, and $260 for the
quarter ended March 31, 2023.

Components of Results of Operations

Revenue

The majority of our revenue is generated from ad sales, which is recognized at the time the digital advertising impressions are
filled and the advertisements are played.  Revenue generated from content subscription services in customized formats is recognized over
the term of the service. The revenue generated from hardware for ongoing subscription content delivery is recognized at the point of the
hardware delivery. Revenue generated from content and streaming services, including content encoding and hosting, are recognized over
the term of the service based on bandwidth usage.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue for the O&O Platform and legacy businesses represents the amortized cost of ongoing licensing and hosting fees,
which is recognized over time based on usage patterns. Licensing fees include fees paid under both our revenue share and fixed-fee
arrangements. The depreciation expense associated with the Loop players is not included in cost of sales.

Cost of revenue for the Partner Platforms business represents hosting fees, amortized costs of internally-developed content, and the
revenue share with third party partners (after deduction of allocated infrastructure costs). The cost of revenue is higher with partners within
the Partner Platform versus those within the O&O Platform because we leverage our Partner Platforms clients’ network of customers and
their screens to deliver content and advertising inventory, rather than using our own Loop players.
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Total Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are attributable to the general overhead related to all the products and services that we provide to our clients
and, as a result, they are presented in an aggregate total. Our operating expenses include sales, general and administrative expenses and
restructuring costs.  

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and related costs associated with our sales and
marketing staff, including salaries, benefits, bonuses and commissions as well as costs relating to our marketing and business
development. We intend to continue to invest resources in our sales and marketing initiatives to drive growth and extend our market
position.

General and administrative expenses consist of employee compensation and related costs for executive,
finance/accounting, legal, human resources, recruiting, and employee-related information technology and administrative personnel,
including salaries, benefits, and bonuses, as well as depreciation, facilities, recruiting and other corporate services.

Restructuring Costs

As previously disclosed, we undertook initiatives in fiscal year 2023 to increase efficiency and cut costs, while still
maintaining our focus on, and dedication to, the continued growth of our business. We made cuts and adjustments across several
aspects of our business. During fiscal year 2023, we completed a plan to reduce our overall SG&A costs by approximately 20%
including labor and various other operating costs. Part of this reduction included eliminating some non-revenue generating
headcount, while continuing to invest in expansion of our revenue and ad sales team. In addition, during the second quarter of fiscal
year 2024, we have implemented further cost-cutting measures as discussed under “—Recent Developments” above.  

Other Income/Expense

Interest Expense

Interest expense consists of interest expense on our outstanding indebtedness and amortization of debt issuance costs.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income consists of employee retention credits, foreign currency translation adjustment, realized foreign current
gains/losses and unrealized gains/losses.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). ASC 740 requires a
company to use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary
differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion, or all of, the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effect of changes in tax laws and rates
on the date of enactment.

Under ASC 740, a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination.
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For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded. We have no material uncertain tax positions
for any of the reporting periods presented.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. We have
also made a policy election to treat the income tax with respect to global intangible low-tax income as a period expense when
incurred.

In December 2019, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards.
The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods
therein. The adoption of this standard in the first quarter of 2022 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures
(“ASU 2023-09”).  ASU 2023-09 is intended to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The
amendments in ASU 2023-09 address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily through changes to the rate
reconciliation and income taxes paid information. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for us in the annual period beginning October 1,
2025, though early adoption is permitted. We are still evaluating the presentational effect that ASU 2023-09 will have on our
consolidated financial statements, but we expect considerable changes to our income tax footnote.

Consolidated Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented. The period-to-period comparison of financial
results is not necessarily indicative of future results.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023:

Three months ended March 31, 
    2024     2023     $ variance     % variance  

Revenue  $  4,002,463  $  5,393,231  $  (1,390,768)  (26)%
Cost of revenue   3,584,300   3,808,150   (223,850)  (6)%

Gross profit  418,163   1,585,081   (1,166,918)  (74)%
Total operating expenses   7,261,028   10,480,130   (3,219,102)  (31)%

Loss from operations   (6,842,865)  (8,895,049)  2,052,184   (23)%

Other income (expense):             
Interest expense   (729,274)  (919,444)  190,170   (21)%
Other income (expense)  1,506  (2,624)  4,130  (157)%

Total other income (expense)   (727,768)  (922,068)  194,300   (21)%

Provision for income taxes   —   —   —  N/A %
Net loss $  (7,570,633) $  (9,817,117) $  2,246,484   (23)%

Revenue

Our revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was $4,002,463, a decrease of $1,390,768, or 26%, from $5,393,231 for
the three months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease was primarily driven by a challenging ad market environment in the second quarter
of fiscal year 2024 due to one of the largest ad demand participants changing their terms of business with ad publishers, which resulted in a
material negative impact on our ad demand partner revenue.

During the latter part of the second quarter of fiscal year 2024, we worked with our demand partners and successfully integrated
those changes and believe we restored demand from this ad demand participant, although their new
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algorithms do not allow for the same historical frequency of ad calls and ad fills. As a result, we do not expect to experience the same levels
of absolute revenue previously recognized by this ad-demand participant unless and until we significantly increase our distribution
footprint.

Finally, our decrease in revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024 from the three months ended March 31, 2023 was also
a result of the reduction in ad demand partners in the second quarter of fiscal year 2024 that view our Loop Platform as a CTV platform on
which CTV ad budgets can be spent, as compared to the number of ad partners that viewed us as a CTV platform in the second quarter of
fiscal year 2023. CTV advertising budgets are generally significantly higher and thus CTV ad demand is generally associated with higher
fill rates and CPMs, as compared to DOOH ad budgets and demand.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was $3,584,300, a decrease of $223,850, or 6%, from $3,808,150
for the three months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease in cost of revenue was primarily due to decreased revenue, which results in lower
variable costs, offset by fixed fee and minimum fee licensing costs.

Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit margin for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was $418,163, a decrease of $1,166,918, or 74%, from
$1,585,081 for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Our gross profit margin as a percentage of total revenue for the three months ended
March 31, 2024, was approximately 10.4% compared to 29.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The percentage decrease was
primarily driven by decreased revenue.

Certain of our content license agreements provide for license fees to be paid at the greater of a percentage of revenue or some
other non-revenue metric, based on the breadth of the Loop Platform and the amount of streaming done across that platform. In times of
reduced revenue, our ability to match more closely revenue and expenses is reduced, as our license fees may not be paid out as a percentage
of revenue, but instead on other less advantageous metrics. In addition, our fixed fee content license agreements reduce our gross profit
margins, as the fixed fees paid are a greater percentage of lower revenue than they would be on higher revenue.  

The relative contributions to total revenue of our O&O Platform and Partner Platforms businesses will impact our gross profit
margin as a percentage of total revenue in future periods.  Each of these businesses have different cost of revenue components with a lower
gross profit margin in our Partner Platforms business, offset by lower operating and selling costs.

Total Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $7,261,028, a decrease of $3,219,102, or 31%, from
$10,480,130 for the three months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease in operating expenses was primarily due to a decrease in sales,
general and administrative expenses as well as stock-based compensation as follows:  

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Our Sales, General and Administrative Expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $5,735,694, a decrease of
$2,033,619, or 26%, from $7,769,314 for the three months ended March 31, 2023.  This decrease in Sales, General and Administrative
expenses was primarily due to reductions in marketing costs, professional and administration fees, headcount, sales commissions and stock
compensation.

More specifically:

● Our marketing costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $1,747,971, a decrease of $1,031,546, or 37%, from
$2,779,517 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to a reduction in affiliate fees, brand marketing and
digital advertising spend.  
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● Our payroll costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $2,853,716, a decrease of $939,871, or 25%, from
$3,793,587 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, primarily driven by a reduction in headcount, sales commissions and
corporate bonuses.

● Our professional fees for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $275,692, a decrease of $24,013, or 8%, from $299,705
for the three months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to a decrease in legal and accounting fees.

● Our administration fees for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $271,736, a decrease of $80,996, or 23%, from
$352,732 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to a decrease in insurance premiums.  

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses as a percentage of total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was
143.3% compared to 144.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Stock-Based Compensation

Our stock compensation (non-cash) for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was $1,112,137, a decrease of $1,363,670, or
55%, from $2,475,807 for the three months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to decrease of stock compensation expense driven by the
decrease in our stock price.

Restructuring Costs

We had no restructuring costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024, or for the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Total Other Expense

Our total other expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2024, were $727,768, a decrease of $194,300, or 21%, from
$922,068 total other expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease in other expenses was primarily driven by the
paydown of debt and the conversion of debt to equity.  



Table of Contents

41

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the six months ended March 31, 2023:

    Six months ended March 31, 
2024     2023     $ variance     % variance  

Revenue $  14,173,719  $  20,219,062  $  (6,045,343)  (30)%
Cost of revenue  10,131,017   12,947,950   (2,816,933)  (22)%

Gross profit  4,042,702   7,271,112   (3,228,410)  (44)%
Total operating expenses  15,142,105   20,416,787   (5,274,682)  (26)%

Loss from operations  (11,099,403)  (13,145,675)  2,046,272   (16)%

Interest expense  (1,731,464)  (1,927,027)  195,563   (10)%
Other income  (25,168)   (2,624)  (22,544)   859 %

Total other income (expense)  (1,756,632)  (1,929,651)  173,019   (9)%

Provision for income taxes  —   (1,230)  1,230   (100)%
Net loss $  (12,856,035) $  (15,076,556) $  2,220,521   (15)%

Revenue

Our revenue for the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $14,173,719, a decrease of $6,045,343, or 30%, from $20,219,062 for
the six months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease was primarily driven by a lack of political ad placements in the three months ended
December 31, 2023, as compared to the three months ended December 31, 2022, which period experienced significant political ad spend in
connection with the U.S. congressional and local elections, as well as a  slowdown in digital advertising spend, as compared to the same
period in the previous fiscal year, due to the more challenging macroeconomic environment in the three months ended December 31, 2023.

We also saw a slowdown in ad spending in the last couple of weeks of our first quarter of fiscal year 2024 due to one of the largest
ad demand participants changing their terms of business with ad publishers. This change had a material adverse impact on our ad demand
partner revenue for the last weeks of December 2023.

During the latter half of the second quarter of fiscal year 2024 we worked with our demand partners and successfully integrated
those changes and believe we restored demand from this ad demand participant, although their new algorithms do not allow for the same
historical frequency of ad calls and ad fills. As a result, we will need to increase our distribution footprint to experience the levels of
absolute revenue previously recognized by this ad demand participant.

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue for the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $10,131,017, a decrease of $2,816,933, or 22%, from
$12,947,950 for the six months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease in cost of revenue was primarily due to decreased revenue, which
results in lower variable costs, offset by fixed fee and minimum fee licensing costs.

Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit margin for the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $4,042,702, a decrease of $3,228,410, or 44%, from
$7,271,112 for the six months ended March 31, 2023. Our gross profit margin as a percentage of total revenue for the six months ended
March 31, 2024, was approximately 28.5% compared to 36.0% for the six months ended March 31, 2023. The percentage decrease was
primarily driven by decreased revenue and revenue mix, as the year-ago period included a smaller portion of our Partner Platform business
which carries lower gross margin, offset by lower operating costs resulting in higher operating margin.

Certain of our content license agreements provide for license fees to be paid at the greater of a percentage of revenue or some
other non-revenue metric, based on the breadth of the Loop Platform and the amount of streaming done across that platform. In times of
reduced revenue, our ability to match more closely revenue and expenses is reduced, as
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our license fees may not be paid out as a percentage of revenue, but on other less advantageous metrics. In addition, our fixed fee content
license agreements reduce our gross profit margins, as the fixed fees paid are a greater percentage of lower revenue than they would be on
higher revenues.

The relative contributions to total revenue of our O&O Platform and Partner Platforms businesses will impact our gross profit
margin as a percentage of total revenue in future periods.  Each of these businesses have different cost of revenue components with a lower
gross profit margin in our Partner Platforms business.

Total Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $15,142,105, a decrease of $5,274,682, or 26%, from
$20,416,787 for the six months ended March 31, 2023. This decrease in operating expenses was primarily due to a decrease in sales, general
and administrative expenses as well as a reduction in stock-based compensation, as follows:  

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Our Sales, General and Administrative Expenses for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $11,906,671, a decrease of
$3,820,777, or 24%, from $15,727,448 for the six months ended March 31, 2023.  This decrease in Sales, General and Administrative
expenses was primarily due to a reduction in payroll costs, marketing costs and professional and administration fees resulting in lower
expenditures and decreased payroll expenses.

More specifically:

● Our payroll costs for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $4,972,894, a decrease of $2,308,442, or 32%, from
$7,281,336 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily driven by a reduction in headcount, sales commissions and
corporate bonuses.

● Our marketing costs for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $3,926,219, a decrease of $1,978,325, or 34%, from
$5,904,544 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to a reduction in affiliate fees, brand marketing and digital
advertising spend resulting in lower marketing expenditures.  

● Our professional fees for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $793,878, a slight increase of $29,035, or 4%, from
$764,843 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to an increase in accounting and legal and accounting fees.

● Our administration fees for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $502,340, a decrease of $247,602, or 33%, from
$749,942 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to a decrease in insurance premiums and board fees.  

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses as a percentage of total revenue for the six months ended March 31, 2024, was 84%
compared to 77.8% for the six months ended March 31, 2023.

Stock-Based Compensation

Our stock compensation (non-cash) for the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $2,440,362, a decrease of $1,826,252, or 43%,
from $4,266,614 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to decrease of stock compensation expense driven by the decrease
in our stock price.

Restructuring Costs

We had no restructuring costs for the six months ended March 31, 2024, or for the six months ended March 31, 2023.
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Total Other Expense

Our total other expenses for the six months ended March 31, 2024, were $1,756,632, a decrease of $173,019, or 9%, from
$1,929,651 total other expenses for the six months ended March 31, 2023. This increase in other expenses was primarily due to by the
paydown of debt and the conversion of debt to equity.

Non-GAAP EBITDA

We believe that the presentation of EBITDA (as defined below), a financial measure that is not part of U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, or U.S. GAAP, provides investors with additional information about our financial results. EBITDA is an important
supplemental measure used by our Board of Directors and management to evaluate our operating performance from period-to-period on a
consistent basis and as a measure for planning and forecasting overall expectations and for evaluating actual results against such
expectations. We define EBITDA as earnings before interest expense (income), income tax (expense)/benefit, depreciation and
amortization.

EBITDA is not measured in accordance with, or an alternative to, measures prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In addition,
this non-GAAP measure is not based on any comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles. As a non-GAAP measure, EBITDA has
limitations in that it does not reflect all of the amounts associated with our results of operations as determined in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. In particular:

● EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we paid in interest expense on our outstanding debt;

● EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we received in interest income on our investments;

● EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we paid in taxes or other components of our tax provision;

● EBITDA does not include depreciation expense from fixed assets; and

● EBITDA does not include amortization expense.

Because of these limitations, you should consider EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures including net income
(loss) and our financial results presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The following table provides a reconciliation of net loss to EBITDA for each of the periods indicated:

Three months ended March 31,     Six months ended March 31, 
2024     2023 2024     2023

GAAP net loss $  (7,570,633) $  (9,817,117) $  (12,856,035) $  (15,076,556)
Adjustments to reconcile to EBITDA:             
Interest expense   729,274   919,444   1,731,464   1,927,027
Depreciation and amortization expense*   1,164,473   865,552   2,353,356   1,735,435
Income Tax expense/(benefit)   —   —   —   1,230
EBITDA $  (5,676,886) $  (8,032,121) $  (8,771,215) $  (11,412,864)

*Includes amortization of content assets for cost of revenue and operating expenses and ATM facility.

Non-GAAP Adjusted EBITDA

We believe that the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA, a financial measure that is not part of U.S. GAAP, provides investors with
additional information about our financial results. Adjusted EBITDA is an important supplemental measure used by our Board of Directors
and management to evaluate our operating performance from period-to-period on a
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consistent basis and as a measure for planning and forecasting overall expectations and for evaluating actual results against such
expectations.

We define Adjusted EBITDA as earnings before interest expense (income), income tax (expense)/benefit, depreciation and
amortization, adjusted for stock-based compensation and non-recurring income and expenses, if any.

Adjusted EBITDA is not measured in accordance with, or an alternative to, measures prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In
addition, this non-GAAP measure is not based on any comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles. As a non-GAAP measure,
Adjusted EBITDA has limitations in that it does not reflect all of the amounts associated with our results of operations as determined in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. In particular:

● Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we paid in interest expense on our outstanding debt;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we paid in taxes or other components of our tax provision;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include depreciation expense from fixed assets;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include amortization expense;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include the impact of stock-based compensation;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include the impact of non-recurring expense;

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include the impact of the loss on the extinguishment of debt; and

● Adjusted EBITDA does not include the impact of other income including foreign currency translation adjustments, realized
foreign currency gains/losses and unrealized gains/losses.

Because of these limitations, you should consider Adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures including
net income (loss) and our financial results presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The following table provides a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA for each of the periods indicated:

Three months ended March 31,     Six months ended March 31, 
2024     2023 2024     2023

GAAP net loss $  (7,570,633) $  (9,817,117) $  (12,856,035) $  (15,076,556)
Adjustments to reconcile to Adjusted EBITDA:             
Interest expense   729,274   919,444   1,731,464   1,927,027
Depreciation and amortization expense *   1,164,473   865,552   2,353,356   1,735,435
Income tax expense (benefit)   —   —   —   1,230
Stock-based compensation**   1,112,137   2,475,807   2,440,362   4,266,614
Non-recurring expense  21,171  —  278,413  —
Other income  (1,506)  2,624  25,168  2,624
Adjusted EBITDA $  (4,545,084) $  (5,553,690) $  (6,027,272) $  (7,143,626)

* Includes amortization of content assets for cost of revenue and operating expenses and ATM facility.
** Includes options, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and warrants.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2024, we had cash of $2,197,359.

The following table provides a summary of our net cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities.

Six months ended March 31,
    2024     2023

Net cash used in operating activities $  (2,287,455) $  (8,715,387)
Net cash used in investing activities   (473,562)   (1,046,876)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   1,889,680   341,112

Change in cash   (871,337)   (9,421,151)

Cash, beginning of period   3,068,696   14,071,914
Cash, end of period $  2,197,359 $  4,650,763

Historically, our principal sources of cash have included revenues from our operations, proceeds from the issuance of shares of our
common stock (“Common Stock”), preferred stock and warrants as well as proceeds from the issuance of debt.

Although historically we have reported significant recurring losses as well as negative cash flows used in operations, we intend to
meet future cash requirements and maintain operations by continuing to reduce overall operating expenses, continuing to focus on
increasing the scope and size of the Partner Platforms and explore alternative revenue generating sources to generate cash through
operations while continuing to fund through financing activities, including sales of Common Stock under our ATM Sales Agreement, and
through the use of equity and debt instruments available to us.

For the next twelve months, we anticipate that we will need to supplement our cash from revenues with additional cash raised from
equity investment or debt transactions, while maintaining reduced spending levels, to ensure that we will have adequate cash to support our
minimum operating cash requirements and thus to continue as a going concern.

There can be no guarantee or assurance that we can raise adequate capital from outside sources. If we are unable to raise funds
when required or on acceptable terms, we may have to significantly reduce, or discontinue our operations.

Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended March 31, 2024, and 2023

Net Cash Flow Used in Operating Activities

Our net cash used in operating activities during the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $2,287,455, a decrease of $6,427,932,
or 74%, from $8,715,387 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily driven by decreased SG&A expenditures and stock-based
compensation expense partially offset by increased bad debt expense.

Net Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities during the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $473,562, a decrease of $573,314, or
55%, from $1,046,876 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily driven by a decrease in the purchase of property and equipment.

Net Cash Flow Provided by Financing Activities

Our net cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended March 31, 2024, was $1,889,680, an increase of
$1,548,568, or 454%, from $341,112 for the six months ended March 31, 2023, primarily due to proceeds from the exercise of warrants as
well as proceeds from a revolving line of credit partially offset by repayments on lines of credit and increased deferred costs partially offset
by increased debt issuance costs.
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As a result of the above activities, for the six months ended March 31, 2024, we recorded a cash balance of $2,197,359, a decrease
of $2,453,404, or 53%, from $4,650,763 for the six months ended March 31, 2023.

Future Capital Requirements

We have generated limited revenue, and as of March 31, 2024, our cash totaled $2,197,359, and we had an accumulated deficit of
$141,141,578. We anticipate further losses as well as negative cash flows used in operations in the foreseeable future. These factors raise
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least one year from the date of issuance of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Historically, our principal sources of cash have included proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock, preferred stock and
warrants and proceeds from the issuance of debt. Our principal uses of cash have included cash used in operations, payments for license
rights and payments relating to purchases of property and equipment. We expect that the principal uses of cash in the future will be for
continuing operations, and general working capital requirements. We expect that as our operations continue to grow, we will need to raise
additional capital to sustain operations and growth.

Our primary source of operating funds since inception has been cash proceeds from the sale of our Common Stock and debt and
equity financing transactions. Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient revenue and our
ability to raise additional funds by way of our debt and equity financing efforts.

Revolving Lines of Credit

Excel Revolving Line of Credit

Effective as of December 14, 2023, we entered into a Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement with Excel Family Partners,
LLLP (“Excel” and the “Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”) for up to a principal sum of $2,500,000, under which we may pay
down and re-borrow up to the maximum amount of the $2,500,000 limit (the “Excel Revolving Line of Credit”). Our drawdown on the
Excel Revolving Line of Credit is limited to no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the last three full months’ revenue, not to exceed
$1,250,000 in any quarter, and not to exceed in aggregate the outstanding debt amount of $2,500,000.The Excel Revolving Line of Credit is
a perpetual loan, with a maturity date that is twelve (12) months from the date of formal notice of termination by Excel, and accrues
interest, payable semi-annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of interest equal to ten percent (10%) per year. Under the Excel Revolving Line of
Credit Agreement, we granted to Excel a security interest in all of our present and future assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or
intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security interest is pari passu with the RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Agreement and the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit (each as defined below), but is subordinate in rights to GemCap under
the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (each as defined below).

Under the terms of the Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, on December 14, 2023, we issued to Excel a warrant to
purchase up to an aggregate of 3,125,000 shares of our Common Stock. The warrant has an exercise price of $0.80 per share, which was the
closing price of our Common Stock on December 13, 2023, expires on December 14, 2026, and is exercisable at any time prior to such
date, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, Excel and its affiliates would beneficially own, for purposes of Section 13(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), no more than 29.99% of the outstanding shares of our Common
Stock.

The Excel Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $2,519,396 and $0 as of March 31,
2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the Excel Revolving Line of Credit in the amount of
$118,284 and $0 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

GemCap Revolving Line of Credit

Effective as of July 29, 2022, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Industrial Funding Group, Inc. (the “Initial
Lender”) for a revolving loan credit facility for the initial principal sum of up to $4,000,000, and through the exercise of an accordion
feature, a total sum of up to $10,000,000 (the “GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”), evidenced by a Revolving Loan Secured
Promissory Note, also effective as of July 29, 2022 (the “GemCap
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Revolving Line of Credit”). Shortly after the effective date of the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, the Initial Lender assigned
the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, and the loan documents related thereto, to GemCap Solutions, LLC (“GemCap” or the
“Senior Lender”).  Availability for borrowing under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit is dependent upon our assets in certain eligible
accounts and measures of revenue, subject to reduction for reserves that the Senior Lender may require in its discretion, and the accordion
feature is a provision whereby we may request that the Senior Lender increase availability under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit,
subject to its sole discretion. Effective as of October 27, 2022, we entered into Amendment Number 1 to the Loan and Security Agreement
and to the Revolving Loan Agreement Schedule, and the Amended and Restated Secured Promissory Note (Revolving Loans) with the
Senior Lender to increase the principal sum available under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement from $4,000,000 to
$6,000,000. The GemCap Revolving Line of Credit matures on July 29, 2024, and began accruing interest on the unpaid principal balance
of advances, payable monthly in arrears, on September 7, 2022, at an annual rate equal to the greater of (I) the sum of (i) the “Prime Rate”
as reported in the “Money Rates” column of The Wall Street Journal, adjusted as and when such Prime Rate changes, plus (ii) zero percent
(0.00%), and (II) four percent (4.00%).

Under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, we have granted to the Senior Lender a first-priority security interest in
all of our present and future property and assets, including products and proceeds thereof. In connection with the loan, our existing secured
lenders, some of whom are the RAT Lenders under our RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit (each as defined below) (collectively, the
“Subordinated Lenders”) delivered subordination agreements (the “GemCap Subordination Agreements”) to the Senior Lender. We are
permitted to make regularly scheduled payments, including payments upon maturity, to such subordinated lenders and potentially other
payments subject to a measure of cash flow and receiving certain financing activity proceeds, in accordance with the terms of the GemCap
Subordination Agreements. In connection with the delivery of the GemCap Subordination Agreements by the Subordinated Lenders, on
July 29, 2022, we issued warrants to each Subordinated Lender on identical terms for an aggregate of up to 296,329 shares of our Common
Stock (each, a “Subordination Agreement Warrant”). Each Subordination Agreement Warrant has an exercise price of $5.25 per share,
expires on July 29, 2025, and is exercisable at any time prior to such date. One warrant for 191,570 warrant shares was issued to Eagle
Investment Group, LLC, an entity managed by Bruce Cassidy, Chairman of our Board of Directors (“Mr. Cassidy”), as directed by its
affiliate, Excel Family Partners, LLLP (“Excel”), an entity also managed by Mr. Cassidy, one of the Subordinated Lenders. The
Subordinated Lenders receiving warrants for the remaining 104,759 warrant shares were also entitled to receive a cash payment of $22,000
six months from the date of the GemCap Subordination Agreements, representing one percent (1.00%) of the outstanding principal amount
of the loan held by such Subordinated Lenders. This cash payment was made to those Subordinated Lenders on January 25, 2023.

The GemCap Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $2,147,821 and $3,757,074 as of
March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit in the
amount of $707,962 and $714,740 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.
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Non-Revolving Lines of Credit

RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit

Effective as of May 13, 2022, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “RAT Non-
Revolving Line of Credit Agreement”) with several institutions and individuals (each a “RAT Lender” and collectively, the “RAT
Lenders”) and RAT Investment Holdings, LP, as administrator of the loan (the “Loan Administrator”) for an aggregate principal amount of
$2,200,000 (the “RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit”), evidenced by a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note (the “RAT Note”),
also effective as of May 13, 2022. Pursuant to the terms of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, the RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit matured eighteen (18) months from the effective date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (the “Original
RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”) and accrues interest, payable semi-annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of interest equal to twelve percent
(12%) per year. Under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, we granted to the RAT Lenders a security interest in all of our
present and future assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof,
which security interest is pari passu with the Excel Revolving Line of Credit Agreement (as defined above) and the May 2023 Secured Line
of Credit Agreement (as defined below) and (each of which are subordinated in connection with our GemCap Revolving Line of Credit
Agreement (as defined above)).

In connection with the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, on May 13, 2022, we issued a warrant to each RAT Lender
(collectively, the “RAT Loan Warrants”) for an aggregate of up to 209,522 shares of our Common Stock. Each RAT Loan Warrant had an
exercise price of $5.25 per share, expires on May 13, 2025, and is exercisable at any time prior to the expiration date.

Effective as of November 13, 2023, we entered into a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment (the “RAT
Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #1”) with the RAT Lenders to: (i) extend the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity
Date from eighteen (18) months to twenty-seven (27) months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit  Agreement, or
August 13, 2024 (the “First Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”); and (ii) amend the payment terms of the RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit such that payments of interest or principal under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the RAT Note will
be due and payable from November 13, 2023, to the First Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date as follows: (a) one payment of
$374,000 (comprised of accrued interest of $132,000 due through November 13, 2023, an initial payment of principal of $220,000 and
$22,000 as consideration to extend the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date) due on November 13, 2023; and (b) nine (9) monthly
payments of principal of $220,000 plus accrued interest, commencing December 13, 2023. In consideration for the extension of the Original
RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date, we agreed to amend the terms of the RAT Loan Warrants as well as the Subordination Agreement
Warrants issued to the RAT Lenders in connection with the GemCap Subordination Agreements described above to reduce the respective
exercise prices thereof to $1.00. See “—GemCap Revolving Line of Credit.” We also agreed to apply one-third (1/3) of the net proceeds of
any capital raise that takes place subsequent to the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #1, other than
proceeds from an equity offering under our ATM Sales Agreement (as defined below) or from an affiliate or insider, toward paying down
the then outstanding principal amount due under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit.  Pursuant to the RAT Non-Revolving Line of
Credit Agreement Amendment #1, each RAT Lender agreed to enter into a lock-up agreement restricting the disposal of any shares of our
Common Stock that are issued in connection with the exercise of the RAT Loan Warrants or the Subordination Agreement Warrants for a
period of twelve (12) months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #1. Effective as of
November 13, 2023, we issued an Amended and Restated Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note Amendment to the Lenders
reflecting the extension of the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date.  

On April 18, 2024, we entered into a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment #2 (the “RAT Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Agreement Amendment #2”) with the RAT Lenders to: (i) extend the Original RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date from
eighteen (18) months to thirty-two (32) months from the date of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement, or January 13, 2025
(the “Second Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date”); and (ii) amend the payment terms of the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit
such that payments of interest and principal under the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the RAT Note will be due and
payable from April 13, 2024, to the Second Extended RAT Line of Credit Maturity Date, as follows: (a) one payment of $121,000,
comprised of accrued interest of
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$11,000 through April 13, 2024, and an initial payment of principal of $110,000, due on April 13, 2024; and (b) nine (9) monthly payments
of principal of $110,000, plus accrued interest, commencing May 13, 2024.  We issued a Second Amended and Restated Non-Revolving
Line of Credit Promissory Note Amendment, effective April 13, 2024, to the RAT Lenders reflecting the extension of the Original RAT
Line of Credit Maturity Date.

The RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $1,106,473 and $2,300,899 as of
March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit in the
amount of $310,009 and $446,764 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

May 2023 Secured Loan

Effective as of May 10, 2023, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “May 2023 Secured
Line of Credit Agreement”) with several individuals and institutional lenders for aggregate loans of up to $4.0 million (the “May 2023
Secured Line of Credit”), evidenced by the Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Notes (each a “May 2023 Secured Note” and
collectively, the “May 2023 Secured Notes”), also effective as of May 10, 2023. The May 2023 Secured Line of Credit matures twenty-four
(24) months from the date of the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit and accrues interest, payable semi-annually in arrears, at a fixed rate of
interest equal to twelve percent (12%) per year. We granted to the lenders under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement a security
interest in all of our present and future assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products
and proceeds thereof, which security interest is pari passu with the RAT Non-Revolving Line of Credit Agreement and the Excel Revolving
Line of Credit Agreement, but is subordinate in rights to GemCap under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement. See “—
GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement.”  

In connection with the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit, on May 10, 2023, we agreed to issue to each lender under the May 2023
Secured Line of Credit Agreement, upon a drawdown, a warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 369,517 shares of our Common Stock.
Each warrant has an exercise price of $4.33 per share, expires on May 10, 2026, and is exercisable at any time prior to such date.

As of May 10, 2023, Excel, an entity managed by Mr. Cassidy, had committed to be a lender under the May 2023 Secured Line of
Credit Agreement for an aggregate loan of $2.65 million, and as of September 11, 2023, Excel had not loaned any funds under the May
2023 Secured Line of Credit. On May 31, 2023, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement (the “Excel
$2.2M Secured Line of Credit Agreement”) with Excel for an aggregate principal amount of up to $2,200,000 (the “Excel $2.2M Line of
Credit”), evidenced by a Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note (the “Excel $2.2M Note”). Pursuant to the terms of a Pay Off
Letter Agreement with Excel dated September 12, 2023, we refinanced the outstanding principal and interest of the Excel $2.2M Line of
Credit to be included as part of the obligations of the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement.  As a result of such refinancing, as of
September 12, 2023, no principal or interest remained outstanding under the Excel $2.2M Secured Line of Credit, and the Excel $2.2M
Secured Line of Credit Agreement was terminated, and as of September 12, 2023, Excel had loaned $2,266,733 under the May 2023
Secured Line of Credit Agreement and received a warrant to purchase 209,398 shares of our Common Stock.

As of December 14, 2023, the outstanding principal and interest on Excel’s portion of the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit was
$2,328,617 (the “Excel May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Pay Off-Amount”), of the total aggregate principal and interest outstanding under
the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit of $3,262,817.  On December 14, 2023, Excel agreed to convert the Excel May 2023 Secured Line of
Credit Pay-Off Amount owed under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit Agreement into 2,910,771 shares of our Common Stock at a
conversion price per share of $0.80.  In addition, in connection with the Warrant Repricing (as defined below), on December 14, 2023,
Excel agreed to reprice the per share warrant exercise price of the warrant for 209,398 shares of our Common Stock to $0.80 per warrant
share and immediately exercised the warrant, delivering the net proceeds of $167,518.40 to us.  See “—Repricing and Exercise of Certain
Warrants.”

On December 31, 2023, one of the remaining lenders under the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit converted $101,699.83 in
outstanding principal and interest into 127,124 shares of our Common Stock at a conversion price per share
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of $0.80. As of March 31, 2024, a total principal amount of $800,000 remained outstanding on the May 2023 Secured Line of Credit and
warrants for a total of 83,142 warrant shares had been issued to the remaining lenders in connection with the May 2023 Secured Line of
Credit and remained outstanding.

The May 2023 Secured Loan had a principal balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $861,333 and $3,214,769 as of
March 31, 2024, and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the May 2023 Secured Loan in the amount of
$576,229 and $0 for the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Excel $1.0M Line of Credit

On March 28, 2024, we entered into a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement with Excel, an entity managed by
Bruce Cassidy, Chairman of our Board of Directors (the “Excel $1.0M Secured Line of Credit Agreement”), for an aggregate principal
amount of up to $1,000,000 (the “Excel $1.0M Line of Credit”), evidenced by a Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note
(the “Excel $1.0M Note”). The Excel $1.0M Line of Credit matures one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of the Excel $1.0M
Secured Line of Credit Agreement (the “Excel $1.0M Line of Credit Maturity Date”) and accrues interest, payable in arrears on the Excel
$1.0M Line of Credit Maturity Date, at a fixed rate of interest equal to twelve percent (12%) per year.

Under the Excel $1.0M Secured Line of Credit Agreement, we granted to Excel a security interest in all of our present and future
assets and properties, real or personal, tangible or intangible, wherever located, including products and proceeds thereof, which security
interest is subordinate in rights to GemCap under the GemCap Revolving Line of Credit Agreement. 

The Excel $1.0M Line of Credit had a balance, including accrued interest, amounting to $1,001,000 and $0 as of March 31, 2024,
and September 30, 2023, respectively. We incurred interest expense for the Excel $1.0M Line of Credit in the amount of $1,000 and $0 for
the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Repricing and Exercise of Certain Existing Warrants

On December 14, 2023, we agreed to offer to amend certain existing warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to 4,055,240
shares of our Common Stock (each such warrant an “Existing Warrant”) to reduce the respective exercise prices thereof to $0.80 per share
(such new price being referred to as the “Amended Warrant Exercise Price”), which was the closing price per share of our common stock as
quoted on the NYSE American on December 13, 2023, on the condition that the holder of each Existing Warrant would commit to exercise
the Existing Warrant within a certain period of time, paying the aggregate Amended Warrant Exercise Price of each respective Existing
Warrant in cash to us (the “Warrant Repricing”). As of December 14, 2023, Existing Warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to
786,482 shares of our common stock were held by Excel and Eagle Investment Group, LLC, entities managed by Bruce Cassidy, Sr.,
Executive Chairman of our Board of Directors, and Existing Warrants exercisable for an aggregate of up to 443,332 shares of our Common
Stock were held by Denise Penz, a member of our Board of Directors. In connection with the Warrant Repricing, each of Mr. Cassidy and
Ms. Penz exercised their Existing Warrants, resulting in net proceeds to us of $983,851.

As of March 31, 2024, holders of Existing Warrants (including those held by Mr. Cassidy and Ms. Penz) had exercised an
aggregate of 1,850,874 shares for an aggregate exercise price of $1,480,699. No other Existing Warrants have been repriced or exercised
under the Warrant Repricing.  

Shelf Registration ($50 Million ATM)

On December 22, 2022, we filed a Shelf Registration Statement on Form S-3 that has been declared effective by the SEC.  On
May 12, 2023, we entered into an At Market (“ATM”) Issuance Sales Agreement (the “ATM Sales Agreement”) with B. Riley Securities,
Inc. (the “Agent”) pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time through the Agent, shares of our Common Stock, for
aggregate gross proceeds of up to $50,000,000.

We are now subject to the limitations of General Instruction I.B.6. of Form S-3, and in accordance with the terms of the ATM
Sales Agreement, the number of shares of our Common Stock available for sale thereunder is now limited to
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one-third of the aggregate market value of our Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Company, as calculated pursuant to General
Instruction I.B.6. of Form S-3. On January 8, 2024, we filed a Prospectus Supplement to the Prospectus filed on January 11, 2023, to
decrease the amount of our Common Stock that is available to be sold under the ATM Sales Agreement, such that we registered the offer
and sale of our Common Stock having an aggregate sales price of up to $18,200,000, from time to time.

During the six months ended March 31, 2024, and from April 1, 2024, through the date of this Report, we have not raised any
funds through sales under our ATM Sales Agreement.   

Future Use of Operating Cash and Capital Requirements

Our future use of operating cash and capital requirements will depend on many forward-looking factors, including the following:

● our ability to attract and retain management with experience in digital media including digital video music streaming, and
similar emerging technologies;

● our ability to negotiate, finalize and maintain economically feasible agreements with the major and independent music labels,
publishers and performance rights organizations;

● our expectations regarding market acceptance of our products in general, and our ability to penetrate digital video music
streaming in particular;

● volatility in digital programmatic advertising spend which can affect our revenues;

● the scope, validity and enforceability of our and third-party intellectual property rights;

● the intensity of competition;

● changes in the political and regulatory environment and in business and fiscal conditions in the United States and overseas;

● our ability to attract prospective users and to retain existing users;

● our dependence upon third-party licenses for sound recordings and musical compositions;

● our lack of control over the providers of our content and their effect on our access to music and other content;

● our ability to comply with the many complex license agreements to which we are a party;

● our ability to accurately estimate the amounts payable under our license agreements;

● the limitations on our operating flexibility due to the minimum guarantees required under certain of our license agreements;

● our ability to obtain accurate and comprehensive information about music compositions in order to obtain necessary licenses or
perform obligations under our existing license agreements;

● potential breaches of our security systems;

● assertions by third parties of infringement or other violations by us of their intellectual property rights;
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● our ability to generate sufficient revenue to be profitable or to generate positive cash flow on a sustained basis;

● our ability to accurately estimate our user metrics;

● risks associated with manipulation of stream counts and user accounts and unauthorized access to our services;

● our ability to maintain, protect and enhance our brand;

● risks relating to the acquisition, investment and disposition of companies or technologies;

● dilution resulting from additional share issuances;

● tax-related risks;

● the concentration of voting power among our founders who have and will continue to have substantial control over our
business; and

● risks associated with accounting estimates, currency fluctuations and foreign exchange controls.

We have evaluated and expect to continue to evaluate a wide array of strategic transactions as part of our plan to acquire or license
and develop additional products and services to augment our current business operations. Strategic transaction opportunities that we may
pursue could materially affect our liquidity and capital resources and may require us to incur additional indebtedness, seek equity capital or
both. Accordingly, we expect to continue to opportunistically seek access to additional capital to license or acquire additional products,
services or companies to expand our operations or for general corporate purposes. Strategic transactions may require us to raise additional
capital through one or more public or private debt or equity financings or could be structured as a collaboration or partnering arrangement.
We have no arrangements, agreements, or understandings in place at the present time to enter into any acquisition, licensing or similar
strategic business transaction.

If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders will experience dilution. Debt financing, if available,
would result in increased fixed payment obligations and may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability to
take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures, or declaring dividends. Any debt financing or
additional equity that we raise may contain terms, such as liquidation and other preferences that are not favorable to us or our stockholders.

As of March 31, 2024, our cash totaled $2,197,359. During the six months ended March 31, 2024, we incurred a net loss
of $12,856,035 and used $2,287,455 of cash in operations. We have incurred significant operating losses in the past and, as of March 31,
2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $141,141,578. We do not expect to experience positive cash flows from operations in the near future
as we continue to invest in the distribution of our Loop Players and the expansion of our Partner Platform business. We also expect to incur
significant additional legal and financial expenditures in meeting the regulatory requirements of an NYSE American listed public company.

There is uncertainty regarding our ability to grow our business without additional financing. Our long-term future growth and
success are dependent upon our ability to continue selling our services, generate cash from operating activities and obtain additional
financing. We may be unable to continue selling our products and services, generate sufficient cash from operations, sell additional shares
of Common Stock or borrow additional funds. Our inability to obtain additional cash could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
grow our business to a greater extent than we can with our existing financial resources.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include assumptions used in the revenue recognition of performance obligations, fair value
of stock-based compensation awards and income taxes.  

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”). Our revenue
recognition disclosure reflects our updated accounting policies that are affected by this new standard. We applied the “modified
retrospective” transition method for open contracts for the implementation of Topic 606. As sales are and have been primarily from
delivery of streaming services, delivery of subscription content services in customized formats, and delivery of hardware and ongoing
content delivery through software and we have no significant post-delivery obligations, this new standard did not result in a material
recognition of revenue on our consolidated financial statements for the cumulative impact of applying this new standard. Therefore, there
was no cumulative effect adjustment required.

We recognize revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control over a product to a customer. Revenue is
measured based on the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products. In instances where final acceptance of the product
is specified by the customer, revenue is deferred until all acceptance criteria have been met. For example, we bill subscription services in
advance of when the service is performed and revenue is treated as deferred revenue until the service is performed and/or the performance
obligation is satisfied. Revenues are recognized under Topic 606 in a manner that reasonably reflects the delivery of our products and
services to clients in return for expected consideration and includes the following elements:

● executed contracts with our clients that we believe are legally enforceable;

● identification of performance obligations in the respective contract;

● determination of the transaction price for each performance obligation in the respective contract;

● allocation the transaction price to each performance obligation; and

● recognition of revenue only when we satisfy each performance obligation.

Our revenue can be categorized into two revenue streams: Advertising revenue and Legacy and other revenue.

The following table disaggregates our revenue by major type for each of the periods indicated:  

Three months ended March 31, Six months ended March 31, 
2024 2023 2024 2023

Advertising revenue $  3,544,992 $  4,648,390 $  12,939,756 $  18,607,895
Legacy and other revenue  457,471  744,841  1,233,963  1,611,167
Total $  4,002,463 $  5,393,231 $  14,173,719 $  20,219,062

We generate advertising revenue by selling advertising impressions on the Loop Platform, which consists of both the O&O
Platform and the Partner Platform. Our advertising sales team works across both platforms, selling ad impressions for both platforms to the
same DSPs and other demand sources.  Revenue recognition for both Platforms is the same.
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Legacy and other revenue includes streaming services, subscription content services, and hardware delivery, as further described below.

We consider ourselves the principal on all advertising transactions in which we sell ad impressions, and thus report revenues on a
gross basis (net of advertising agency fees and commissions retained by advertising demand sources). We have evaluated ASC 606-10-50-5
and determined that there are no significant differences in the type of goods or services, geographical region, market or type of customer,
contract type, contract duration, timing of transfer and sales channel between the O&O Platform and Partner Platform, and therefore would
not require additional disaggregation of advertising revenue.

Performance Obligations and Significant Judgments

Our performance obligations and recognition patterns for each revenue stream are as follows:  

Advertising Revenue

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, advertising revenue accounts for 91% and 92%, respectively, of our revenue
and includes revenue from direct programmatic and local advertising as well as sponsorships.

For all advertising revenue sources, we evaluate whether we should be considered the principal (i.e., report revenues on a gross
basis) or an agent (i.e., report revenues on a net basis). Our role as principal or agent differs based on our performance obligation for each
revenue share arrangement.

For both the O&O and Platform Partner businesses, advertising inventory provided to advertisers through the use of an advertising
demand partner or agency, with whose fees or commission is calculated based on a stated percentage of gross advertising spending, we are
considered the agent and our revenues are reported net of agency fees and commissions. We are considered the agent because the demand
partner or agency controls all aspects of the transaction (pricing risk, inventory risk, obligation for fulfillment) except for the devices used to
show the advertisements, therefore we report this advertising revenue net of agency fees and commissions.

We are considered the principal in our arrangements with content providers in our O&O Platform business and with our
arrangements with our third-party partners in our Partner Platforms business and thus report revenues on a gross basis (net of agency fees
and commissions), wherein the amounts billed to our advertising demand partners, advertising agencies, and direct advertisers and sponsors
are recorded as revenues, and amounts paid to content providers and third-party partners are recorded as expenses. We are considered the
principal because we control the advertising space, are primarily responsible to our advertising demand partners and other parties filling our
advertising inventory, have discretion in pricing and advertising fill rates and typically have an inventory risk.

For advertising revenue, we recognize revenue at the time the digital advertising impressions are filled and the advertisements are
played, and for sponsorship revenue, we generally recognize revenue ratably over the term of the sponsorship arrangement as the sponsored
advertisements are played.

Legacy and Other Business Revenue

For the six months ended March 31, 2024, and 2023, legacy and other business revenue accounts for the remaining 9% and 8%,
respectively, of total revenue and includes streaming services, subscription content services, and hardware delivery, as described below:

● Delivery of streaming services including content encoding and hosting. We recognize revenue over the term of the service
based on bandwidth usage. Revenue from streaming services is insignificant.

● Delivery of subscription content services in customized formats. We recognize revenue straight-line over the term of the
service.
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● Delivery of hardware for ongoing subscription content delivery through software. We recognize revenue at the point of
hardware delivery. Revenue from hardware sales is insignificant.

Transaction prices for performance obligations are explicitly outlined in relevant contractual agreements; therefore, we do not
believe that significant judgments are required with respect to the determination of the transaction price, including any variable
consideration identified.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation awarded to employees is measured at the award date, based on the fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the requisite vesting period. We measure the fair value of the stock-based compensation issued to non-
employees using the stock price observed in the trading market (for stock transactions) or the fair value of the award (for non-stock
transactions), which were more reliably determinable measures of fair value than the value of the services being rendered. The measurement
date is the earlier of (1) the date at which commitment for performance by the counterparty to earn the equity instruments is reached, or (2)
the date at which the counterparty’s performance is complete.

 Content Assets

On January 1, 2020, we adopted the guidance in Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2019-02, Entertainment—Films—Other
Assets—Film Costs (Subtopic 926-20) and Entertainment—Broadcasters—Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Subtopic 920-350):
Improvements to Accounting for Costs of Films and License Agreements for Program Materials, on a prospective basis. We capitalize the
fixed content fees and our corresponding liability when the license period begins, the cost of the content is known, and the content is
accepted and available for streaming. If the licensing fee is not determinable or reasonably estimable, no asset or liability is recorded, and
licensing costs are expenses as incurred. We amortize licensed content assets into cost of revenue, using the straight-line method over the
contractual period of availability. The liability is paid in accordance with the contractual terms of the arrangement. Internally-developed
content costs are capitalized in the same manner as licensed content costs, when the cost of the content is known and the content is ready
and available for streaming. We amortize internally-developed content assets into cost of revenue, using the straight-line method over the
estimated period of streaming.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740. ASC 740 requires a company to use the asset and liability method of
accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax liabilities
are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more
likely than not that some portion, or all of, the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the
effect of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Under ASC 740, a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit
is recorded. We have no material uncertain tax positions for any of the reporting periods presented.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. We have also made
a policy election to treat the income tax with respect to global intangible low-tax income as a period expense when incurred.
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In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, as part of its initiative to
reduce complexity in accounting standards. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020,
including interim periods therein. The adoption of this standard in the first quarter of 2022 had no impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU
2023-09”).  ASU 2023-09 is intended to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in
ASU 2023-09 address investor requests for enhanced income tax information primarily through changes to the rate reconciliation and
income taxes paid information. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for us in the annual period beginning October 1, 2025, though early adoption
is permitted. We are still evaluating the presentational effect that ASU 2023-09 will have on our consolidated financial statements, but we
expect considerable changes to our income tax footnote.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This guidance requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the
reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This guidance also requires
enhanced disclosures regarding significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses. The new guidance is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2022. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our condensed consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. We adopted this ASU as of October 1, 2023, and there is no material impact to our financial statements
as of March 31, 2024.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not required.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), consisting of controls and other procedures designed to give reasonable assurance that information
we are required to disclose in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding such required disclosure. A
control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated such disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and have determined that such disclosure controls and procedures
are effective.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control
over financial reporting.

ThereThere have been no
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are currently not involved in any litigation that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
results of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency,
self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of our executive officers, threatened against or affecting us, or our
Common Stock, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are any of the
risks described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2023. Any of these factors could result in a
significant or material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition. Additional risk factors not presently known to us or
that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business or results of operations.

Except as set forth below, there have been no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed under the heading “Risk
Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on December 19, 2023.

Risks Related to Our Business

There is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern and if we are unable to generate significant revenue or
secure additional financing, we may have to significantly reduce or discontinue our operations.

We are a small and emerging media company that is in the early stages of our business plans to capture a significant portion of the
out of home market and related advertising sales revenue. Historically, we have not generated sufficient revenues to operate our business.
We have a significant accumulated deficit and have incurred operating losses for years and expect losses to continue during the remainder
of our fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, and beyond. Our independent registered public accounting firm has indicated in their report
that these conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months from the issuance
date of our financial statements for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024. Our primary source of operating funds since inception
has been cash proceeds from sales of our Common Stock and from debt and equity financing transactions. Our ability to continue as a going
concern is dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient revenue and our ability to raise additional funds by way of its debt and equity
financing efforts. There can be no assurance that adequate financing will be available in a timely manner, on acceptable terms, or at all.

For the next twelve months, we anticipate that we will need to supplement our cash from revenues with additional cash raised from
equity investment or debt transactions, while maintaining reduced spending levels, to ensure that we will have adequate cash to support our
minimum operating cash requirements and thus to continue as a going concern.  We have based this estimate on assumptions that may
prove to be wrong, and we could use our available capital resources sooner than we expect.

We have no agreements, commitments, or understandings to secure additional financing at this time and there can be no guarantee
or assurance that we can raise adequate capital from outside sources. Our long-term future growth and success are dependent upon our
ability to continue selling our services, generate cash from operating activities and obtain additional financing. We may be unable to
continue selling our products and services, generate sufficient cash from operations, sell additional shares of common stock or borrow
additional funds. Our inability to obtain additional cash by raising funds when required or on acceptable terms, or otherwise, could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to grow our business to a greater extent than we can with our existing financial resources and we may
have to significantly reduce, or discontinue our operations.
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Risks Related to Owning Our Common Stock

We are currently out of compliance with the continued listing standards of the NYSE American. Our failure to resume compliance with
the continued listing standards or make continued progress toward compliance consistent with a plan of compliance we intend to submit
to NYSE American may result in the delisting of our Common Stock.

Our Common Stock is listed on the NYSE American and such listing is contingent on our compliance with the NYSE American’s
conditions for continued listing, including requirements relating to maintaining minimum stockholders’ equity.  On April 23, 2024,
we received a deficiency letter (the “Deficiency Letter”) from the NYSE American indicating that the Company is not in compliance with
the NYSE American continued listing standards set forth in Sections 1003(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the NYSE American Company Guide.
Section 1003(a)(i) of the NYSE American Company Guide requires a listed company’s stockholders’ equity be at least $2.0 million if it has
reported losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in two of its three most recent fiscal years. Section 1003(a)(ii) of the NYSE
American Company Guide requires a listed company’s stockholders’ equity be at least $4.0 million if it has reported losses from continuing
operations and/or net losses in three of its four most recent fiscal years. Section 1003(a)(iii) of the NYSE American Company Guide
requires a listed company’s stockholders’ equity be at least $6.0 million if it has reported losses from continuing operations and/or net
losses in its five most recent fiscal years. The Deficiency Letter noted that the Company reported stockholders’ deficit of $(3.7) million as
of December 31, 2023, and losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in its five most recent fiscal years ended September 30,
2023, thereby putting us out of compliance with Sections 1003(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the NYSE American Company Guide.  The Deficiency
Letter also noted that the Company is not currently eligible for any exemption set forth in Section 1003(a) of the NYSE American Company
Guide.  

As a result of this non-compliance, we became subject to the procedures and requirements set forth in Section 1009 of the NYSE
American Company Guide. In order to maintain our listing on the NYSE American, we are required to submit a plan of compliance (the
“Plan”) by May 23, 2024, addressing how we intend to regain compliance with Sections 1003(a)(i), (ii) and (iii) of the NYSE American
Company Guide by October 23, 2025 (the “Deadline”). We intend to submit the Plan by the Deadline. We have been advised that if we fail
to submit a Plan, our Plan is not accepted, we do not make progress consistent with the Plan, or we fail to regain compliance by the
Deadline, then NYSE American may commence delisting procedures. Although we intend to regain compliance with the continued listing
requirements prior to the Deadline, we may be unable to do so. If delisting proceedings are commenced, the NYSE American rules permit
us to appeal a staff delisting determination; however, there can be no assurance that the outcome of any such appeal would be in our favor.  

Our Common Stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NYSE American during the Plan period, subject to our compliance
with the NYSE American’s other applicable continued listing standards and will continue to trade under the symbol “LPTV,” but will have
an added designation of “.BC” to indicate that the Company is not in compliance with the NYSE American’s listing standards. The NYSE
American notification does not affect our business operations or our SEC reporting requirements and does not conflict with or cause an
event of default under any of the Company’s material agreements.

If NYSE American delists our Common Stock from trading on its exchange due to our failure to meet the NYSE American’s
listing conditions, we and our security holders could face significant material adverse consequences, including, but not limited to, a lack of
trading market for our Common Stock, reduced liquidity, decreased analyst coverage of our Common Stock and an inability for us to obtain
additional financing to fund our operations.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

There were no material defaults regarding payments of principal and interest that exceeded 5% of our total assets.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

(a)

Board Cash Compensation Deferral

As part of the cost-cutting measures being undertaken across the Company, effective as of May 3, 2024, our Board of Directors
agreed to defer all cash compensation due to them for the remainder of fiscal year 2024 until October 1, 2024, at which time deferred
payments are expected to be paid and regularly quarterly payments are scheduled to resume.

CEO Employment Letter Agreement Amendment

As previously disclosed, we entered into an employment letter agreement with Justis Kao (“Mr. Kao”) in connection with his
appointment as Interim Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO Employment Letter Agreement”), which was effective as of March 17, 2024.
 On May 3, 2024, we entered into an amendment to the CEO Employment Letter Agreement (the “CEO Employment Letter Agreement
Amendment”) to add the following provisions: in each case of (a) termination without Cause unrelated to a Change of Control (as defined in
the CEO Employment Letter Agreement) and (b) termination without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason related to a Change of Control
(as defined in the CEO Employment Letter Agreement), Mr. Kao will receive the unpaid portion of the agreed-upon bonus for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2022.  

The foregoing description of the CEO Employment Letter Agreement Amendment does not purport to be complete and is qualified
in its entirety by reference to the full text of the CEO Employment Letter Agreement Amendment, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.8
to this Report and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) None.  

(c) None of our directors or officers adopted, modified, or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or a non-
Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement during our fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2024 (each as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended).

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.  Exhibit Description

10.1 Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement, effective as of March 28, 2024, by and between the Company
and Excel Family Partners, LLLP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on April 3, 2024).

10.2 Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note, effective as of March 28, 2024, executed by the Company for the
benefit of Excel Family Partners, LLLP under the Secured Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement, effective as of
the same date, by and between the Company and Excel Family Partners, LLLP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 3, 2024).  

10.3 Subordination Agreement, effective as of March 28, 2024, by and between the Company, Retail Media TV, Inc., Excel
Family Partners, LLLP and GemCap Solutions, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 3, 2024).

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924042754/tm2410256d1_ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924042754/tm2410256d1_ex10-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924042754/tm2410256d1_ex10-3.htm
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10.4 Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment #2, dated April 18, 2024, by and between the Company, RAT
Investment Holdings, LP, as administrator of the loan, and the institutions and individuals identified as lenders therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2024).

10.5 Second Amended and Restated Non-Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note, effective as of April 13, 2024, executed by
the Company for the benefit of the lenders under the Non-Revolving Line of Credit Loan Agreement Amendment #2,
effective as of the same date (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on April 24, 2024).

10.6 Employment Letter Agreement between the Company and Jon Niermann, effective March 17, 2024 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2024).

10.7 Employment Letter Agreement between the Company and Justis Kao, effective March 17, 2024 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2024).

10.8* CEO Employment Letter Agreement Amendment between the Company and Justis Kao, effective May 3, 2024.

31.1*  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
   
31.2*  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
   
32.1**  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
   

32.2**  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document -the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL
tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* Filed herewith.

** This certification is not deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject
to the liability of that section. Such certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act
of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924050683/tm2412156d1_ex10-1.ht
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924050683/tm2412156d1_ex10-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924035736/tm249029d1_ex10-1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1643988/000110465924035736/tm249029d1_ex10-2.htm
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Loop Media, Inc., a Nevada corporation
(Registrant)

Date: May 3, 2024 By: /s/ Justis Kao
Justis Kao
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 3, 2024 By: /s/ Neil Watanabe
Neil Watanabe
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 10.8

May 3, 2024

Justis Kao, Chief Executive Officer
EMAIL:  justis@loop.tv 

RE:  Amendment to that certain Interim CEO Employment Letter Agreement effective as of
March 17, 2024 (the “Employment Letter Agreement”), by and between Loop Media, Inc. (the
“Company”) and Justis Kao, Interim CEO (“Mr. Kao” or “you”). All capitalized terms not
defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Employment Letter
Agreement.  

Dear Justis,

For good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, this letter
(the “Employment Letter Agreement Amendment”), dated as of the date noted above (the
“Amendment Effective Date”), serves as an agreement the Company and you to hereby amend
the Employment Letter Agreement as follows:    

1. Clarification and Amendment of Severance Terms:

a. Paragraph 6(b)(i) “At-Will Employment; Severance – Termination without Cause Unrelated
to Change of Control” of the Employment Letter Agreement is hereby removed and
replaced in its entirety by the following:

“The Company will pay you an amount equal to eighteen (18) months of your then-current
base salary (including any increase in base salary, but without deduction for any across-
the-board or other salary reductions), less all applicable withholdings and deductions, paid
over such eighteen-month period, on the schedule described in Section 7 below.”  

b. The following sub-paragraph is added to Paragraph 6(b) “At-Will Employment; Severance
– Termination without Cause Unrelated to Change of Control,” in its entirety, as Paragraph
6(b)(iii):  

“(iii) The Company will pay you the unpaid portion of the agreed upon bonus for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2022.”



c. Paragraph 6(c)(i) “At-Will Employment; Severance – Termination without Cause or
Resignation for Good Reason Related to Change of Control” of the Employment Letter
Agreement is hereby removed and replaced in its entirety by the following:

“The Company will pay you an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of your then-
current base salary (including any increase in base salary, but without deduction for any
across-the-board or other salary reductions and excluding any salary reduction that served
as the basis for any Good Reason resignation), less all applicable withholdings and
deductions, paid in a lump-sum within 60 days following your Separation from Service.”  

d. The following sub-paragraph is added to Paragraph 6(c) “At-Will Employment; Severance
– Termination without Cause Resignation for Good Reason Related to Change of
Control,” in its entirety, as Paragraph 6(c)(iv):  

“(iv) The Company will pay you the unpaid portion of the agreed upon bonus for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2022.”

This Employment Letter Agreement Amendment, together with the Employment Letter Agreement,
constitutes the full and entire understanding and agreement between the Company and you with
regard to the subject matter therein and herein. Except as amended by this Employment Letter
Agreement Amendment, the Employment Letter Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full
force and effect, and this Employment Letter Agreement Amendment shall be governed by and
subject to the terms of each of the Employment Letter Agreement, as applicable and as amended
hereby.  In the event of any inconsistency between this Employment Letter Agreement Amendment
and the Employment Letter Agreement, the provisions of this Employment Letter Agreement
Amendment will control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS IMMEDIATELY AFTER THIS PAGE]



Agreed as of the Amendment Effective Date:

LOOP MEDIA, INC.

By: ____/s/ Neil Watanabe___________
Name: Neil Watanabe, Chief Financial Officer

Acknowledged, accepted and agreed as of the Amendment Effective Date:

__/s/ Justis Kao________________________
Justis Kao

{Signature Page to Employment Letter Agreement Amendment}



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Justis Kao, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Loop Media, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) ) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting
which are reasonable likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

Dated: May 3, 2024 /s/ Justis Kao
Justis Kao
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Neil Watanabe, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Loop Media, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) ) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting
which are reasonable likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

Dated: May 3, 2024 /s/ Neil Watanabe
Neil Watanabe
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Loop Media, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Justis Kao, Interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: May 3, 2024 /s/ Justis Kao
Justis Kao
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Loop Media, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Neil Watanabe, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: May 3, 2024 /s/ Neil Watanabe
Neil Watanabe
Chief Financial Officer


